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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small
and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Main Board. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Zhejiang RuiYuan
Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions
expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair
and reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

On behalf of Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Control Technology Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the 2017 annual results of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The overall economic environment in the PRC in 2017 was very
challenging for private enterprises due to the following factors:

(i) the overall economic growth rate continued to slow down
(i) competition and production costs continued to increase

We strived to survive in such a harsh environment by simplifying our
operation structure and controlling costs.

In 2017, our major business included sales of controller systems for
electronic equipment and electronic component and subassembly for
electronic appliances.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB44,529,000 (2016: RMB14,337,000), representing an
increase of approximately RMB30,192,000 over the previous year. The
increase in revenue of the Group was mainly due to the Group’s sales
staff expanding and extending the business for the Company and further
strengthening its marketing during the year.

For details of performance analysis and financial review, please refer to
page 6 to page 10 under the section Management Discussion and
Analysis.

PROSPECT

While the market for 2018 remains uncertain. Some trends seem to be
certain:

(i) the economic growth will further slow down; and

(i) automatization and replacement of labor by robotics will continue
to speed up

The above trends present challenges and opportunities to the Group. |
have more than 10 years experience on industrial automation and have
great confidence in the future market of intelligent control system for
industrial uses.

While 2018 remains challenging for us, we will explore business
opportunities for intelligent control system for industrial uses.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

DEDICATION

On behalf of all members of the board of Directors, | would like to take
this opportunity to express our sincerest gratitude to our shareholders
and colleagues for their unwavering dedications in 2017 and to our
clients and business partners for their loyalties and support rendered to
the Group.

He Keng
Chairman
Ningbo, The PRC, 23 March 2018
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
EEE W RO

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s activities comprise sales of controller systems for electronic
equipment and electronic component and subassembly for electronic
appliances. The Group’s activities are primarily operated in the PRC and
the Group’s revenue is mainly attributable to customers in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB44,529,000 (2016: RMB14,337,000), representing an
increase of approximately RMB30,192,000 over the previous year. The
Group’s revenue due to the launch of its new products and expanding
new market business in 2017, resulting in the increase of sale cost and
expense for business development during the year, therefore incurred a
loss of approximately RMB7,175,000 in 2017.

Due to the general poor market and increasing competition, the Group
strived to survive in the harsh environment by maintaining a simple
organizational structure and controlling costs to a minimum level.

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

An analysis by reportable segments is provided in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Gross profit margin was 1.4% (2016: 11.8%), revenue increased of
approximately RMB30,192,000. The Group’s gross profit margin due to
the launch of its new products and expanding new market business in
2017, resulting in the increase of sale cost and expense for business
development, low gross profit on new products during the year, therefore
recorded a decrease.

The Group recorded other revenue of approximately RMB14,000 in
2017, only which represented mainly interest income (2016: RMB5,000).
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
EEE W RO

In 2017, the loss on deregistration of a subsidiary of the Group was
RMB34,000 (2016: Nil), and the Group did not have any items related to
the disposal of investment properties and prepaid leases in 2017 (2016:
RMB2,343,000).

Administrative expenses recorded a decrease by approximately
RMB1,001,000 over the previous year. The decrease in administrative
expenses were mainly due to the decrease in legal and professional fee
(2017: RMB1,888,000; 2016: RMB2,358,000).

Finance costs increased by RMB1,948,000 (2016: nil) over the previous
year which is primarily due to the imputed interest expense on loan from
a major shareholder.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB7,175,000 (2016:
RMB2,624,000).

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Current assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB28,904,000 (2016: RMB15,297,000), representing an increase of
approximately RMB13,607,000 compared with last year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in trade and bills receivables by
approximately RMB15,173,000, the increase in bank balances and cash
by approximately RMB2,431,000.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had current liabilities of
approximately RMB31,159,000 (2016: RMB66,466,000), which
represented a decrease of approximately RMB35,307,000. The decrease
due to repayments to a former director and shareholder.
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T AT

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net liabilities of approximately
RMB40,655,000 (2016: RMB51,078,000). The Group’s operations and
investments were financed principally by its internal resources, amount
due from a major shareholder and other borrowings and shareholders’
equity.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB5,265,000 (2016: RMB2,834,000), with no bank
borrowings (2016: Nil).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had other borrowings of
approximately RMB1,520,000 (2016: RMB6,220,000). The decrease was
mainly due to repayment of approximately RMB4,700,000 during the
year.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017 was 5.2% (2016:
40.4%), which was expressed as a percentage of other borrowings over
the total assets.

There were no important events affecting the Group which have occurred
after 31 December 2017.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

As the general economic growth in China slowed down in recent years,
competition in the controllers systems market becomes keener and
keener. In this connection, we will continue to implement stringent cost
control measures in 2018. Going forward, the Group will explore business
opportunities on intelligence control system for heavy industrial uses such
as application for industrial robotics.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recapitalizes its subsidiaries to
generate a capital commitment of RMB 6,000,000 (2016:nill).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITION

The Group did not have any significant investment and acquisition during
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities of the Group during the year are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T AT

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 22 employees (2016: 15
employees). Remuneration is determined by reference to market terms
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees. Bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to
employees in recognition and reward of their contribution. Other benefits
include contributions to retirement scheme.

An analysis of employees of the Group by their duties for each of the
three years ended 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 is set out below
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Headcount for the year
ended 31 December

HE+-A=T-HLFENAR

2015 2016 2017
—hF ZZE—RF ZZZE—tF
Sales and marketing HE RIS HERE 5 6 10
Research & Development A 2% 2 0 0
Production (including quality control) AE(BRIBEEEET) 2 1 1
Finance and administration B 7% AT 11 7 8
Procurement b 2 1 3
22 15 22

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS EEHE

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rule (“Corporate Governance Code”), the Company has
established the Remuneration Committee to formulate remuneration
policies. Directors’ remuneration is subject to Shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
of such Directors elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration. No Director, or any of their respective associates,
was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no other borrowings or charges
on the Group’s assets. (2016: USD14,500).
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T AT

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries by the Group.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2017.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM

Please refer to page 39 for information about risk management and
internal control system.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group was in compliance

with all the laws and regulations applicable to the business operations of
the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

As from 31 December 2017 to the date of this annual report, no
significant events have occurred.

DIVIDENDS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year under review (2016: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supemsors and Senior Management
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CEERSREIIA BB

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of 7 Directors including 4 executive
Directors, and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. He Keng, aged 42, was served as a chairman of Zhejiang RuiYuan
Machine Tool Co., Ltd since 2005. He has extensive experience in
corporate management. He worked in the Bank of China Shaoxing
Branch from July 1997 to January 2005, during which he served as the
account manager of the corporate account department, the head of the
sub-operating office and the president of Zhuji Xincheng Sub-branch
respectively. Mr. He graduated from Zhejiang University with a major in
accounting and financial management. As at the date of this report, Mr.
He Keng is deemed to be interested in 370,000,000 domestic shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. Wu Shanhong, aged 32, is also the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, joined Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool Co., Ltd in September
2006. She has years of work experience in finance. Ms. Wu Shanhong
graduated from Southwest Jiaotong University with a major in
accounting.

Mr. Chen Weigiang, aged 36, joined Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool Co.,
Ltd in March 2004. Mr. Chen Weiqgiang graduated from Southwest
University of Science and Technology with a major in economic
information management and computer application.

Mr. Ding Cheng, aged 30, joined Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool Co.,
Ltd in January 2010. He has extensive experience in sales of machines.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Mana
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie, aged 46, Mr. Kwok currently has been
providing corporate advising services as professional accountant in Hong
Kong. He has also been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Siberian Mining Group Company Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), since February 2014. He was previously appointed as
financial controller, company secretary and authorised representative of
Forebase International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwok is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom. He holds a Master of Professional
Accounting Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master
of Corporate Governance Degree from the Open University of Hong Kong
and a Honours Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University).

Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong, aged 43, engaged in sales and management in the
pharmaceutical industry since August 1995. He is currently the managing
director of Jiaxing Boyada Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd* and has extensive
experience in management of pharmaceutical marketing. Mr. Zhang
Zhuoyong graduated from Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textiles with a major
in dyeing and finishing.

Mr. Zhang Tieyi, aged 42, joined Hangzhou Saifute Traffic Facilities Co.,
Ltd* in May 2006. He was a project manager and person-in-charge of
Jiangsu Chengyu Construction Group Co., Ltd*. He has extensive
experience in project management. Mr. Zhang Tieyi graduated from
Chongaing Architectural University with a major in industrial equipment
installation.

* For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. Shi Huanmiao, aged 33, has about 10 years experience in project
management. Mr. Shi Huanmiao graduated from Hefei University of
Technology with a major in science and technology of optical information
in July 2007.

Mr. Zhang Shenggen, aged 70, joined Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool
Co., Ltd in May 2004 and is currently the head of the corporate
management department Zhejiang of RuiYuan Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
Mr. Zhang Shenggen graduated from University of Hangzhou* with a
major in administrative management.

Mr. Chen Yuankang, aged 43, joined Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool
Co., Ltd in April 2002 and is currently the head of the production
department of Zhejiang Zhuiji RuiYuan Machine Tool Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen
Yuankang is experienced in production management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Zou Jing, aged 31, is the deputy general manager and joint company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Zou was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the Company since May 2017 and was further appointed as
a joint company secretary of the Company since February 2018. She is
responsible for the daily operation and management and the company
secretarial affairs of the Company.

Ms. Zou is currently also the minister of finance management department
of Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool Co., Ltd. She joined Zhejiang RuiYuan
Machine Tool Co., Ltd in August 2008 and served as its minister of
investment operations department, vice-minister of the treasury
department and head of finance department.

Ms. Zou graduated from Yangtze University with a bachelor’'s degree in
business administration in June 2008.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zou Jing. For biography of Ms. Zou, please refer to “Senior
Management” above.

Ms. Ko Nga Kit, is one of the joint company secretaries of the Company.
Ms. Ko is a vice president of SW Corporate Services Group Limited, and
has over 25 years of experience in the corporate services field. She is a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. In addition, she holds a bachelor’s degree in laws and a
post-graduate diploma in corporate compliance.

* For identification purpose only

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

E=E

AEGETE 3358 MANI0FRA BRAR
FEEAER -_FTTLFLARKNARIXX
S(HBMBRREMER)

RAEREAE - 7058 - ZEFMF R AE AN LR
B#HARERAT  REMIGEKKER AR
BEEEF - RAEBREEZERMNAZE(ITHE
BHHE) o

FRITEESCAE » 435 0 — 2T —F M AE AN Tix
RIRBRARIIE  BEMIWMERKERA
RIEESHE MuTEAEHEEEETAAR

LENLE
BREEE

BEFLL > 3158 » AARABIBEIEMEE AR
WE - BLLER B+ F R AREZERTRAF
BRSNS \F - AEE— T EZRER
ARRBEARNE  BREEARRNBERE
EREBERRRMESR

B+ BRI DInERKER A RMBEIR
E R o R ZFTN\F /A MANTIRERRK
BERARLERETEREELMAR  ESE
BIEREFBEBEE

BREIN_TTZNFRARERRIAE  #H
IERERSELEM -

BERRIWE

PEut EEPFRINBEFLHM LR
EIEE] -

BHRZ L RARRMEMEZ— BAEX
FEICERBEEERARZHEE  ANEER
BHBEHEAR 25 FER - FREBFINERS
AR EBFFMERTHRABRRENERE L -

AN WA ERB T B AR EARREX
8 -
< EpHs

NY LIMITED 13
RN AR AR

Do pARp e



Re ort of the Directors
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are the sales of intelligent
controller systems for electronic equipment and electronic component
and subassembly for electronic appliances. Details of the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development and the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 10.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 66.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2017.

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE AND UNCERTAINTIES
Credit Risk

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to the failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties arose from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade and
other debtor at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
Please refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for details
of credit risk.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group was not exposed to any fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group was exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable rate bank balances. However, the Group considered that the
effect of the cash flow interest rate is minimal and no sensitivity analysis
to interest rate risk is presented. Please refer to note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements for details of interest rate risk.

Liquidity Risk

The Group was exposed to liquidity risk as at 31 December 2017 as its
financial assets due within one year were less than its financial liabilities
due with in one year. The Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB2,255,000 as at 31 December 2017. The liquidity of
the Group depends upon the positive cash flows expected to be
generated from the Group’s future operations and the Group’s ability to
successfully obtain new working capital in order to meet the Group’s
future working capital and financial requirements. Please refer to note 7
to the consolidated financial statements for details of liquidity risk.

Currency risk

The Group operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB and USD. The Group’s foreign currency
is mainly HKD. The Group has certain portion of the other receivables,
tax recoverable, bank balances and cash and other payables that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency to which
they relate.
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The following table shows the Group’s exposure as at 31 December
2017 to currency risk arising from recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate.

TRINFRAEENBE_E—+F+-_A=1—
Rt #REERBBE(ARZ BN ERNI)
BEEB AN EREETHE) Frol B BB AR

2017 2016

:%—tff— —7 /\E

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETIT

Assets BE 7 69
Liabilities afE - (936)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise. Please refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for
details of currency risk.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 69. The
Company has no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 December 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company and no restriction against such rights under
the laws of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), which will oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 131 and 132.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at the date of this report, no option has been granted or agreed to be
granted by the Company to any of its Directors, Supervisors or
employees of the Company or its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Keng (Chairman)
Ms. Wu Shanhong

Mr. Chen Weigiang

Mr. Ding Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong

Mr. Zhang Tieyi

Supervisors

Mr. Shi Huanmiao

Mr. Zhang Shenggen

Mr. Chen Yuankang

Members of the Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong
Mr. Zhang Tieyi
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Members of the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Zhang Tieyi (Chairman)
Mr. He Keng

Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Members of the Nomination Committee

Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong (Chairman)
Mr. He Keng

Mr. Zhang Tieyi

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

In accordance with Articles 88 and 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors and Supervisors appointed by the Board since
last shareholders’ annual general meeting shall be elected at the coming
shareholders’ general meeting for a term of three years. A Director or
supervisor may serve consecutive terms if re-elected upon the expiration
of the terms.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out on page 11 to page 13.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years from his/her date of
appointment as a Director or, as the case may be, as a Supervisor and
thereafter subject to termination by either party giving not less than one
month’s written notice to the other party.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors or Supervisors who are proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Apart from the Directors’ and Supervisors’ service contracts disclosed
above, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for as disclosed under the section headed “Permitted Indemnity
Provision”, no transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to
which the Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2017 or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2017. In addition, no
contract of significance between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was made.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no Directors or their
respective associates has engaged in or has any interest in any business
which were in competition or were likely to compete, directly or indirectly
with the business of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the controlling shareholders of the Company or their subsidiary
has or had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance, whether for the provision of services or otherwise, to the
business of the group to which the company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND EE FETBRAEBRESREALTR
SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SHARES OF THE 7z
COMPANY

At 31 December 2017, the interests and long positions of each Director, R-Z—+F+-_A=+—H ARa&ESF
Chief Executive and Supervisor of the Company in the shares, underlying FZ1THHA B REENA QA R EBBHEE (F
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations & B &5 KBS 60 ([ 5F 5 R HIE &0 1) EXVER)
(within the meaning of part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance — #IR% ) ~ ABEAMR D REHT - A AL RIBEE
(the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company % & Hi & 1615 55 352 (53R F A7 B 0 & M AT e
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company iz RITA » R EEEHME T HMERA
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing ~ FI1#GEM &% F R8I (GEM iR E'H)%5 46
by directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 of the Rules Governing the §FTillE F#ETRX FHREZES M AR
Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong — Bt FregiEss RiFA 0T ¢

Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of RMB0.10 each of the Company as at 31 December R-ZT—+F+-A=+—H AQX"EFREE

2017: ARB0107TTH E B -
Long positions in shares R NEFE
Approximate
percentage of Approximate
Name of Director/ Domestic Shares (Note 1) shareholding held in percentage of
Chief Executive/ of RMBO0.10 each same class of shareholding in the
Supervisor (the “Domestic Shares”) held Nature of interest securities registered capital
B3 TEAHK FReREEARK0I0TH ERERES hEmER
AB/EBHE RER (MEE1)[RER] BB BEtE BABRAED L BARREDI L
Mr. He Keng 370,000,000 Domestic Shares (Note 2) Interest of 100.00% 74.00%
(BF=S 370,000,000 B A E R (Fi3E 2) corporation (Note 2)
EE R (i 2)
1,000 H Shares Beneficial owner (Note 3) 0.0008% 0.0002%
1,000 B H % BB A (M3
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(1) Domestic Shares of a nominal value of RMB0.10 each ( the “Domestic Shares”), in the
registered capital of the Company, which are subscribed for or credited as fully-paid in
Renminbi. “H Share(s)” represent overseas listed foreign share(s) of a nominal value of
RMBO0.10 each in the registered capital of the Company, which are listed on the GEM
and subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars.

2 On 11 July 2016, Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Robot Company Limited (“Zhejiang
RuiYuan”) entered into a share transfer agreement with Wan Li Group Company
Limited (& 23S E D BR AR (“Wanli”), Mr. Qi Yong Qiang (‘Mr. Qi”) and other
parties, pursuant to which, among other things, Zhejiang RuiYuan agreed to acquire (i)
306,900,000 Domestic Shares held by Wanli and 15,775,000 Domestic Shares held
by Mr. Qi (collectively the “First Batch Sale Shares”) and (i) 47,325,000 Domestic
Shares held by Mr. Qi (the “Second Batch Sale Shares”). After completion of the
transfer of the First Batch Sale Shares and the Second Batch Sale Shares ,Mr He and
parties acting in concert with it owned an aggregate of 370,000,000 Domestic Shares,
representing approximately 74% of the entire issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2017.

Q) As a result of the Mandatory Cash Offer which closed at 4 pm on 14 September 2016,
Mr. He acquired valid acceptances in respect of 1,000 H Shares. Accordingly, Mr. He
was interested in 1,000 H Shares as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the Directors,
Chief Executives and Supervisors (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) have any interest in, or had they been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of SFO).

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement enabling the Directors, Chief
Executives and Supervisors of the Company to hold any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or its associated corporation.

Furthermore, at no time during the year was there any arrangement
whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or its associated corporation.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PARTIES IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

According to the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
section 336 of the SFO, as at 31 December 2017, the Company had
been notified the following substantial shareholders’ were interested in
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors, Chief

Executives and Supervisors.

BB R M

g%&i&ﬁf&%ﬁ%zkﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁ

BIRIEBA N EIEAEBIEREFENTE
RZE—tF+=_A=+—
B ARAREMNESUTEIERREEANE D
?ﬂﬂM%&Mi%*OL%%‘IEJALY
FIiFBEERES  TETHMABRESMER

Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
shareholding held shareholding in
Name of Substantial Total number of in same class of the registered
Shareholder Shares interested Nature of interest securities capital
EEERIES HEmER
TERRHEEB BERRNRHEY BHEME BaBREI N BOBREI
HDT I (‘Zhejiang RuiYuan’) 370,000,000 Domestic Shares ~ Beneficial owner 100% 74%
370,000,000 kW& i ERBAA
(Notes 2, 3 and 4)
(B2 - 3%4)
M EREREER AR 370,000,000 Domestic Shares Interest of corporation 100% 74%
(ML) 370,000,000 W& B EEER
(Hangzhou Qindie Electronic (Notes 2 and 5)
Equipment Company Limited) (B2 k5)
(“Hangzhou Qindie”)
FBLRHEREERAR([FESE]) 370,000,000 Domestic Shares Interest of corporation 100% 74%
(Zhuji Jinfu Electrical Equipment 370,000,000 A E EEER
Company Limited”) (“Zhuiji Jinfu”) (Notes 2 and 5)
(Hz#2%5)
RELEETHRBRAR(ARLE]) 47,325,000 Domestic Shares Nominge 12.79% 9.47%
(Shaoxing Qinyuan Electronic Technology 47,325,000 R E REA
Company Limited) (“Shaoxing Qinyuan”) (Notes 2 and 6)
(Wi2k%6)
(S (5% 4E ) (Mr. He Keng) (‘Mr. He') 370,000,000 Domestic Shares ~ Interest of corporation 100% 74%
370,000,000 R W & EEER
(Notes 2 and 5)
(2 k5)
1,000 H Shares Beneficial owner 0.0008% 0.0002%
1,000 HiR EaEA
(Note 7)
(Hizt7)
% L5 (Mr. Tang Jingfeng) 370,000,000 Domestic Shares Interest of corporation 100% 74%
370,000,000 kW & ik EBER
(Notes 2, 5 and 6)
(W2 5%6)
HERELAE (Mr. Zhao Zhongxin) 370,000,000 Domestic Shares ~ Interest of corporation 100% 74%
370,000,000 kA & ik EEES
(Notes 2 and 5)
(W2 ko)
{A BRI E (Mr. He Yanggen) 370,000,000 Domestic Shares ~ Interest of corporation 100% 74%
370,000,000 kA & i EEER
(Notes 2 and 5)
(Hz#2%5)
Martin Currie China Hedge Fund Limited 14,245,000 H Shares Investment manager 10.96% 2.85%
14,245,000 1% H Rk 17 RE®E
Martin Currie Investment 14,245,000 H Shares Investment manager 10.96% 2.85%
Management Limited 14,245,000 % HARFR 3 RELE
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(1) Domestic Shares of a nominal value of RMBO.10 each, in the registered capital of the
Company, which are subscribed for or credited as fully-paid in Renminbi. “H Share(s)”
represent overseas listed foreign share(s) of a nominal value of RMB0.10 each in the
registered capital of the Company, which are listed on the GEM and subscribed for
and traded in Hong Kong dollars.

2 On 11 July 2016, Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Robot Company Limited (“Zhejiang
RuiYuan”) entered into a share transfer agreement with (Wan Li Group Company
Limited (& 2 12 A% 52 B I D A BR A 7)) (“Wanli”), Mr. Qi Yong Qiang (“Mr. Qi”) and other
parties, pursuant to which, among other things, Zhejiang RuiYuan agreed to acquire (i)
306,900,000 Domestic Shares held by Wanli and 15,775,000 Domestic Shares held
by Mr. Qi (collectively the “First Batch Sale Shares”) and (i) 47,325,000 Domestic
Shares held by Mr. Qi (the “Second Batch Sale Shares”). After completion of the
transfer of the First Batch Sale Shares and the Second Batch Sale Shares ,Mr He and
parties acting in concert with it owned an aggregate of 370,000,000 Domestic Shares,
representing approximately 74% of the entire issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2017.

Q) As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29 December 2017,
Zhejiang RuiYuan has pledged its 322,675,000 domestic shares of the Company
(representing 64.535% of the total issued share capital of the Company) to an
independent third party for serving Zhejiang RuiYuan’s own purpose and fuffilling its
responsibilities.

(4) Zhejiang RuiYuan is a joint stock company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and is owned as to 55% by Hangzhou Qindie and as to 45% by Zhuiji Jinfu.

5) Hangzhou Qindie is a company established in the PRC and is owned as to 51% by Mr.
He and as to 49% by Mr. Tang Jingfeng. Zhuji Jinfu is a company established in the
PRC and is owned as to 50% by Mr. Zhao Zhongxin and as to 50% by Mr. He
Yanggen.

6) Shaoxing Qinyuan,to whom the second Batch Sale Shares were transferred, is the
nominee for Zhejiang Ruiyuan and a company that is owned as to 60% by Mr.He and
40% by Mr.Tang jinfeng.

(7) As a result of the Mandatory Cash Offer which closed at 4pm on 14 September 2016,
Mr. He acquired valid acceptances in respect of 1,000 H Shares. Accordingly, Mr. He
was interested in 1,000 H Shares as at 31 December 2017.

Save as discussed above, the Directors are not aware of any person
(other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors, Chief Executives’ and Supervisors’ Interests” in the
shares of the Company above) holding any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were required to be recorded in the register pursuant to section
336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Director’s
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong) when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on page 28 to
page 44 of the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend a payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 62%
— five largest customers combined 92%
Purchases
— the largest supplier 41%
— five largest suppliers combined 89%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has an interest in the major suppliers and major customers noted
above.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

According to our business nature and pursuant to the relevant laws of
the PRC/Hong Kong, there are no specific environmental standards and/
or requirements for conducting the Group’s business.

Please refer to Environmental, Social and Governance Report on page 45
to page 58 for details about environmental, social and governance matters.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group ensures that all the employees are reasonably remunerated
and maintains good relationship with its employees. For details, please
refer to the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Employees and Remuneration Policies” and “Report of the Directors —
Corporate Social Responsibilities” of this annual report, respectively. The
Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy workplace for its
employees and encourage them to have a work-life balance.
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On 4 November 2016, a former employee of the Company, filed a claim
with the Labour Tribunal of Hong Kong against the Company and its
subsidiary, Hong Kong Wan Li Enterprise Company Limited (together the
“Respondent”) for a compensation of approximately HK$2,600,000. As
of the reporting date, the dispute between the Claimant and the Group
are still in progress, the result of the case has not yet come up and the
Directors are of the opinion that the Company has strong grounds to
defend the claim. An amount of RMB86,000 has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016,
and no further provisions have been made for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Details of the dispute are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains good relationship with its customers. The sales
personnel make regular visits and/or phone calls to the customers. If
there is any complaint from customers, it will be reported to the
management and immediate remedial action will be taken and feedback
from customers will be followed till settlement of the complaint.
Thereafter, the cause of such complaint will be studied, analysed and
evaluated and recommendations will be in place for improvement.

The Group also maintains good relationship with its suppliers. During the
year, no complaint was received from the suppliers and there were no
disputed debts or unsettled debts and all the debts were settled on or
before due dates or a latest date as mutually agreed.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set out in
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 in the Corporate
Governance Report of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2017 are disclosed on page 28 to page 44.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group, are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the transactions described therein fall under the definition of
connected transaction which are not fully exempted from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirement under chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations was made by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no significant events after the end of reporting period.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business that directly or indirectly competes with the
business of the Group or has any other conflicts of interest.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year have been audited by KTC Partners
CPA Limited, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company. The Company has not changed its auditors over the last three
years.

On behalf of the Board

He Keng
Chairman

Ningbo, The PRC, 23 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code as
stated in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules except the following
deviations (Code Provisions A.2.1):

Mr. He Keng is the Chairman of the Board. The Company has no such
title as the chief executive officer and the daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive directors as
well as the senior management. The Board is of the view that although
there is no chief executive officer, the balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced
individuals and meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting the
operations of the Company.

Further information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is
set out below.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has appointed 3 independent non-executive Directors.
The Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company still considers all
the existing independent non-executive Directors to be independent. All
the independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a three-year
term.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
establishing good corporate governance practices and procedures. The
maintenance of high standard of business ethics and corporate
governance practices has always been one of the Group’s goals. The
Company believes that good corporate governance provides a framework
that is essential for effective management, successful business growth
and a healthy corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.
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The Board has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the GEM Listing
Rules. Continuous efforts are made to review and enhance the Group’s
internal controls and procedures in light of changes in regulations and
developments in best practices. To us, maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices is not just complying with the provisions
but also the intent of the regulations to enhance corporate performance
and accountability.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the code provisions of
the CG Code throughout the year, except where otherwise stated.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a code of dealing in securities by Directors,
supervisors and employees of the Group as set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors, supervisors and employees. Having made
specific enquiry with all Directors and supervisors, the Directors and
supervisors confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong and the GEM
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should
be announced immediately when it is the subject of a decision. The
procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of
inside information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the GEM Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and its website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board comprises:

Executive Directors Mr. He Keng (Chairman)
Ms. Wu Shanhong
Mr. Chen Weigiang

Mr. Ding Cheng

Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong
Mr. Zhang Tieyi

Each independent non-executive Director has given an annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the Company
considers them to be independent under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprises seven members,
including four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. Each of the members possesses sufficient experience and
qualification which enable them to discharge their duties properly.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including age, education background, skills and
experience.

The chairman is responsible for the formulation and review of the Group’s
overall development strategies. The daily operation is delegated to the
executive Directors and senior management. None of the independent
non-executive Directors is interested in the business of the Group and
their independence has to be confirmed upon appointment or
reappointment. Currently, there is no financial, business, family or other
relevant material relationship among the existing Directors.

According to the articles of association of the Company, all the Directors
shall be elected at the general meeting of the shareholders and the term
of office shall be three years, renewable upon reappointment or re-
election.

Board meetings are conducted on a periodic basis and with reference to
the operation needs. During the year, the board held 7 meetings and the
attendance of the Directors is set out on page 31.
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ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, a total of 7 Board
meetings and 1 annual general meeting (“AGM”) were held by Company,
and the attendance of each Director is set out as follows:

ERHETE

REBEEZFE—tF+_A=1+—HILTHRFE
W ARBAHBT7TREFETANIRERER
BERE((BRBEFAE]))  SUBZEZHER
AN

Attendance/Number of
Number of meetings attended in meetings held
the year ended 31 December 2017 HE/BIEERE
REE-Z-+tE+-A=1+-H Board
LEERERERNE meetings AGM
Name of Director BEfF EZE8E RRAFAE
Mr. He Keng (Chairman) NBELE(LE) 7 11
Ms. Wu Shanhong LS A n 1N
Mr. Chen Weigiang RV n 1
Mr. Ding Cheng TREE m 1
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong REKEE n 17
Mr. Zhang Tieyi BERAE n 1N
Mr. Eddie Kwok Kim Hung Bl St n 1N

The chairman attended AGM to answer questions and collect views of
shareholders. All Directors, company secretary and the auditors had
attended the AGM to answer questions at the meeting.

ITREHERFBFAS AR ERRMERIEE
HER -2REF  QARAMNEMZBEELER
RRBFAGYAE EOIERE -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and be
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board focuses on
formulating the Group’s overall strategies, authorising the development
plan and budget; monitoring financial and operating performance;
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system; supervising and
managing management’s performance of the Group; and setting the
Group’s values and standards. The Board delegates the day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group to management.
The delegated functions are reviewed by the Board periodically to ensure
that they accommodate the needs of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. At least
10 days’ notice of regular Board meetings is given to all Directors and
they can include matters for discussion in the agenda as they think fit.
The agenda accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
3 days or a shorter period agreed by the directors before the date of a
regular Board meeting in order to allow sufficient time for the Directors to
review the documents.

Minutes of every Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their
perusal and comments prior to confirmation of the minutes. The Board
also ensures that it is supplied in a timely manner with all necessary
information in a form and of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge
its duties.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of the
company secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled
to have full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. He Keng (“Mr. He”) is the Chairman of the Company. Mr. He is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and policy making of the
Group.

The Company has no such title as the chief executive officer and
therefore the daily operation and management of the Company is
monitored by the executive Directors as well as the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no chief executive officer,
the balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
Board, which comprises experienced individuals and meet from time to
time to discuss issues affecting operation of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be elected at
general meetings and shall hold office for a term of three years and shall
be eligible for re-election upon expiry of their term. Each of the executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors, except Mr. Kwok
Kim Hung Eddie, has entered into a service contract with the Company
on 13 December 2016 for a term of three years commencing from 13
December 2016.

Mr. Kwok has entered into a service contract and a supplemental
agreement to the aforesaid service contract with the Company on 1
January 2016 and 29 December 2016 respectively, for a term of office
commencing from 29 May 2015 to 28 May 2018. Therefore, the term of
office of Mr. Kwok will expire on 28 May 2018 and has offered himself for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. All Directors also participate in
continuous professional development programmes such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A
record of the training received by the respective Directors are kept and
updated by the company secretary of the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended
31 December 2017 is summarized below:

HRXER

RBDEEHBEEXER  ARFRBESY
FERBZEXREANERNENRE 2 NEB R
- 2REFNALFHEFZXERE A
BERBEZEALMBMZINEEARS  EEH
EXEQ ARBERAEFREZAMBLZRE - &
BEEMERZIBIREBARRIARMERE &
S

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HILFE 5E=F
PR sE s 2 @RI ReR B T :

Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/conference(s)
relevant to the business or
Directors’ duties
HERREBIESHEZ
1254 -Y s V£ A

Mr. He Keng (Chairman) AR SC A ()
Ms. Wu Shanhong RHEL 2

Mr. Chen Weigiang PRIZ ST A&

Mr. Ding Cheng TS

Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong SREKEAE

Mr. Zhang Tieyi BEREE
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie PR S A

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any suitable

training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
3 independent non-executive Directors, who have reviewed the annual
results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017. Mr. Kwok
Kim Hung, Eddie, is the chairman of the Audit Committee who has
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Our Audit Committee has primary responsibility for monitoring the quality
of internal control and ensuring that the financial performance of the
Company is properly measured and reported on, receiving and reviewing
reports from management and the auditors relating to the annual,
quarterly and interim results, and monitoring the accounting and internal
control system in use throughout the Group. The Audit Committee held 5
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2017.

According to the current terms of reference, meetings of the Audit
Committee shall be held at least 4 times a year. 5 meetings were held for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

During the year under review, the Group did not have an internal audit
function but had appointed an external consultant to review the material
controls of the Group on a continuous basis and aims to cover all major
operations of the Group on a cyclical basis. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, reviewed the appraisal performed by the an independent
auditor on the Company’s risk management and internal control systems.
Based on information furnished to it and its own observations, the Board
is satisfied that the present internal control and risk management systems
of the Group are effective and adequate in all material respects.
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Attendance/

Number of meetings
held in the financial
year ended 31 December

2017

RBE-Z—+tF

+t=-A=+—-RAL

MREFEERHE BT

Name of members of Audit Committee EREEEREHS BRRY
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (Chairman) SRR A (EE) 5/5
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong SRR 5/5
Mr. Zhang Tieyi EER L 5/5
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At the meetings held during the year, in performing its duties in
accordance with its terms of reference, the work performed by the Audit
Committee included:

(@ review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system and risk management of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

(b)  recommendation to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of
the re-appointment of the external auditor and approval of their
remuneration;

(c)  determination of the nature and scope of the audit; and

(d)  review the financial statements for the relevant periods.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 22 March 2012 comprising the 3
independent non-executive Directors and 1 executive Director. Mr. Zhang
Tieyi is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available at the Company’s
website and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
consulting the chairman of the Board about their remuneration proposals
for other executive Directors, making recommmendation to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management and the Remuneration Committee has adopted the
approach under B.1.2(c)(ii) of the code provisions to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

Meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a
year. 1 meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2017.
During the meeting, remuneration packages, performance and service
contracts of the Directors had been reviewed and approved, no change
has been proposed to the remuneration policy.
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The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

MK B ZHFEBREININT

Attendance/

Number of meetings
held in the financial

year ended 31 December

2017

REZE=-ZF—+&F

+=-HA=+—-HL

Name of members of MEREERHE BT
Remuneration Committee FTHEEEREHA BRAY
Mr. Zhang Tieyi (Chairman) EEBELE(EE) 1/1
Mr. He Keng fa$R S A 11
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong aREIK ST E 11
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie SO ST 11

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
was established on 22 March 2012 comprising the 3 independent non-
executive Directors and 1 executive Director. Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong is
currently the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available at the Company’s
website and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least once a year, making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategies, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members (select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships), assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the Chairman; and reporting to the Board on its
decisions or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions.
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Meeting of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least once a year.
3 meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2017. Issues
concerning the structure, size and composition of the Board were
discussed.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

h%?a%tﬁ? PBIT-REH - REBERE
EERBE_FT—tF+t-_A=+T—HLFER
BIT3REH - AJ:W.:mTﬁE%i%QZ -
AHRAEKIER

MK B2 HFEBRFIMNT

Attendance/

Number of meetings
held in the financial

year ended 31 December

2017
REBE=-ZS—+&
+=ZHA=+—H1L
Name of members of BREERLE
Nomination Committee REZEERENR BITEBRY
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong (Chairman) RENKTE(EE) 1/1
Mr. He Keng AR A 1/1
Mr. Zhang Tieyi R E 1/1
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie SRS 1/1
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEREZ
Financial Reporting B 7% BR 3R

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board and reports regularly to the Board on financial position and
prospects of the business of the Company so as to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report) for preparing the financial statements of
the Group that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group. The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Board and to report their opinion to the shareholders of
the Company. A statement by auditor about their reporting responsibility
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate system of internal
controls and risk management within the Group and for reviewing their
effectiveness. The systems of internal controls and risk management are
designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations, to safeguard
assets and to ensure the quality of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. They are also designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that material
misstatement or loss can be avoided, and to manage and minimize risks
of failure in operation systems. The Company is committed to
implementing a stricter and more regulated internal control and risk
management procedures in the new financial year.

In the future, the Group will conduct regular review of the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems and its effectiveness to ensure the
interest of shareholders is safeguarded.

OBJECTIVES OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The objectives of the risk management and internal control framework of
the Group include:

° to strengthen the Company’s risk management and internal control
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules requirements;

o to establish and constantly improve the risk management and
internal control systems; and

° to keep baseline risks within the acceptable range.
THREE-TIER RISK MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to
identify, assess, mitigate and handle risks. At the first line of defence,
business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring
risks associated with each business or deal. The finance department, as
the second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, oversees and
reports risk management matters to the Board. It ensures that risks are
within the acceptable range and that the first line of defence is effective.
As the final line of defence, the Board together with audit committee of
the Company, with the professional advices and opinions from the
external professional Company by whom internal audit work of the Group
was conducted on annual basis, ensures that the first and second lines
of defence are effective through constant inspection and monitoring.
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PRINCIPLES OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Our risk management and internal control systems involve five elements
as internal environment, risk assessment, control activities, information
and communication and internal supervision. The aim of internal control
is to reasonably guarantee the compliance of its operation and
management with regulations and laws, assets security, and authenticity
and integrity of financial report and related information, improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of operating activities and promote the
realization of development strategy of the Group.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for the appointment
of the external auditors, including the engagement of non-auditing tasks
and fees. During the year under review, the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was audited by KTC Partners CPA
Limited and the fees paid for the audit of the Group’s financial statements
are set out as follows:

REPEIE R A

HAPIH R E IR R N RRER IR R AT R MR IR
R EHE - BEEED  EMEERRAREES
hEER - AEREEARREAFKEER
A%ﬁ*/i BER: UBBREREAEENAR

CRSEEEBHER R - A RREAR
%Iﬁ?ﬁéﬂﬁ R o

SMNEE A BED

ARREVZEGRERBINEZEAE - BIEF
REBENTERER ROBEFER MES
SR EBAERAREREE T —+tF 1+
=+ AULEFENMERR LMEZARENE
BRINWERBEREIINT

Fee paid/payable

2 NN EH
RMB’000
Services Rendered Fri2 it PR & ARBEFIT
Audit Service EZ R 500
Non-audit services IEEZ AR TS 99
599

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BEANTIWE
Ms. Ko Nga Kit (“Ms. Ko”) and Ms. Zou Jing (“Ms. Zou”) were appointed  SiZz+ ((Sx+]) ket ([t )5

as the joint Company secretaries of the Company on 6 October 2017
and 7 February 2018 respectively. The biographical details of Ms Ko and
Ms Zou are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”.

Ms. Ko is a vice president of a corporate services provider, SW Corporate
Services Group Limited, and assists Ms. Zou in company secretarial
affairs. The primary corporate contact person of Ms. Ko at the Company
is Ms. Zou.

According to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Ko has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the financial
year ended 31 December 2017.
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INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company places great emphasis on its relationship and
communication with investors. The Company has numerous
communication channels, such as press conference and seminars, to
communicate with the media, analysts and fund managers. Designated
senior management staff holds dialogue with analysts, fund managers
and investors, who are also arranged to visit the Company and
investment projects from time to time, so as to keep them abreast of the
Group’s business and latest developments. In addition, investors can
also visit the Company’s website at www.ruiyuanhk.com for the most
updated information and the status of the business development of the
Group.

The Company has made changes to the constitutional documents during
the year ended 31 December 2017. Investors can obtain the latest
constitutional documents of the Company from the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and senior management recognise the responsibility of
safeguarding the interest of shareholders of the Company and provide
highly transparent and real-time information on the Company so as to
keep the shareholders and investors abreast of the Company’s position
and help them to make the best investment decision. The Company
believes that maintaining good and effective communication with
shareholders can facilitate the shareholders’ understanding of the
business performance and strategies of the Group. The Board and senior
management also recognise the responsibility of safeguarding the interest
of shareholders of the Company. In order to safeguard the shareholders’
interest, the Company reports its financial and operating performance to
shareholders through annual reports, interim reports and quarterly
reports. Shareholders of the Company can also obtain information of the
Group in time through annual reports, interim reports, quarterly reports,
announcements, circulars, press releases and the Company’s website
www.ruiyuanhk.com.

The annual general meetings are an appropriate forum for direct
communication between the Board and shareholders. Shareholders can
raise questions directly to the Board in respect of the performance and
future development of the Group at annual general meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM”).

RIGHT TO CONVENE EGM

Pursuant to Article 52 of the Articles, shareholders individually or jointly
holding 10% or more of the Company’s issued shares carrying voting
rights requests in writing to the Company’s registered office: Factory No.
3, Laiyan Road West Economic Development Zone (South Side) Yu Yao
Zhejiang China for convening of an extraordinary general meeting.

To convene a general meeting, the Company shall give written notices no
less than 45 days before the date of the meeting, informing all registered
shareholders of the matters proposed to be considered at the meeting
and the date and place of the meeting. Shareholders who intend to
attend the meeting shall return the written reply of attendance to the
Company to be received by the Company 20 days before the date of the
meeting.

The Company shall calculate, according to the written replies received 20
days before the date of the meeting, the number of shares carrying voting
rights represented by the shareholders attending the meeting. The
Company may convene a general meeting if the number of shares
carrying voting rights represented by shareholders intending to attend
aggregates to more than half of the total number of shares carrying such
rights. If not, the Company shall make an announcement within five days,
once again notifying the shareholders of the matters proposed to be
considered and the date and place of the meeting. Once an
announcement has been so made, the Company may convene the
general meeting.
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Shareholders requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting shall abide by the following procedures:

(i) Two or more shareholders holding in aggregate 10% or more of the
shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting sought to be held
shall sign a written requisition in one or more counterparts in the
same form and contents, requiring the board of Directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting
thereof and stating the matters to be considered at the meeting.
The board of Directors shall, as soon as possible after receipt of the
requisition, convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting thereof. The aforementioned number of shares held by the
shareholders shall be calculated based on the date of submission
of the written requisition.

(i) If the board of Directors fails to issue a notice to convene such
meeting within 30 days from the date of receipt of the requisition,
the requisitioning shareholders may themselves convene such
meeting within 4 months of the receipt of the requisition by the
board of Directors. In so convening a meeting, the requisitioning
shareholders shall adopt a procedure as similar possible as that of
general meetings convened by the board of Directors.

All reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitioning shareholders as a
result of the failure of the board of Directors to convene a meeting and so
convening such meeting themselves as mentioned above shall be borne
by the Company and deducted from any sums due to such defaulting
Directors by the Company.

RIGHT TO PUT FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

Pursuant to Article 54 of the Articles, the Board of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors and shareholders severally or jointly holding 3% or above
shares of the Company shall be entitled to submit proposals to the
Company at the general meeting.

Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 5% or above of shares of the
Company shall have the right to submit a temporary proposal to the
convener in writing 10 days prior to the holding of the general meeting;
the convener shall, within 2 days after its receipt of such a proposal,
issue an supplementary notice of the general meeting, and announce the
contents of the temporary proposal. If the listing rules of the place where
the Company’s shares are listed provide otherwise, such rules shall also
be complied with.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

IR EZRBHAFHIRRAGHEBRIRREH
fEE IR T IR PR

() AFFECZBETHERLLERAMED
AE 19 10% LA _E (& 10%) KRR & Bk & 9 & BA
FHRRER - AR E — (e E B REE
ANBANEEE R REEELEFAFR
BRASHEHENBRRSE  YHMPSH
MEE EEgERIRETDERERE
ERREAFIIREASRELEIRES
e IR BURRRIRHEEE KA

s
= o
B

(i) WMEFSTWRIFAEAMEREIOANE
BRHNBHEHENBN  IBEZEROR
RO EESEE W ZEREZ4EARNE
TEREgE BRCHANRBRFEZ R4

HERTARRRAEHIZFER -

BERAEFERBAABRLBTERMATES
WERITEHN  EMEENAEER  EEARQ
AASE - WIEARRMNKRBEENFBERR -

RBRRAELRERRZEF

RESEMAELLG  EFE  EEIRFEFNL
EHRFBEARF%IIA RN HRER - BER
BRIRARE EMAARRERER -

BEEAEHFERRAS% I ERRMHIIR -
BRERRAGER 10 AAIR LG IRETER
EXAEAN ARAREEWBIRERRKR2A
NBELBRRASHTBEN  XAEERHEROR
Ao ARRRRMN ey EHARBSERE
FERIES MR EHE °

NY LIMITED 43
RN AR AR

Do pARp e



Corpgrate Governance Report
ﬂ:\% /\IZl 315& =

RIGHT TO PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to registered office of the Company in
PRC: Factory No. 3 Laiyan Road West, Economic Development Zone
(South Side), Yuyao, Zhejian, China for the attention of Ms. Zou Jing, the
Joint Company Secretary.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
Reporting Guide

The report is the second Environmental, Social and Governance Report
published by Zhejiang Ruiyuan Intelligent Control Technology Company
Limited (the “Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
and was prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules Limited as well as the actual situation of the Company.

The report aims at enhancement stakeholders’ recognition of the
Company’s performance in terms of environment and society and
understanding of the Company’s strategy of sustainable development.
The report is in line with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
confirms its responsibility to ensure the completeness of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, and confirms the
accuracy, authenticity and completeness of the content herein upon
review of the report.

Scope of Report

The report covers the Group’s performance in terms of environment and
society in the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 and
involves the Group and all its subsidiaries. All the information contained
herein is from the relevant departments of the Group as well as
stakeholders. Please refer to the index of the report for the disclosure of
indicators herein. We will continue to improve the content of
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

POLICY OF SUSTAINABLE GOVERNANCE

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture and sale of
intelligent controller systems for consumer electrical and electronic
appliances, sale of small electrical appliances and the assembly of mobile
phones in the PRC. The marketing teams of the Group have covered
Shanghai, Hangzhou, Nanjing, Jiaxing, Zibo, Wuxi, Hefei and Cixi and the
revenue also mainly originates from customers in the PRC and Hong
Kong.
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The Group strictly complies with local laws and has prepared a series of
policies for corporate businesses and governance. Upon review of the
Company’s corporate governance practice, the Board confirms that it
was in line with all the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code set
forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Group would like to express its sincere gratitude to all units for their
contributions in 2017. To achieve the business model of sustainable
development fully relies on the close cooperation and support of all
stakeholders including the Company’s directors, investors, the Group’s
staff and customers. The Group undertakes that it will continue to strictly
observe laws and regulations for its future businesses and improve the
Company’s sustainable performance in terms of environment and society
on an ongoing basis.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND RESOURCES
MANAGEMENT MEASURES (A1, A2, A3)

In respect of environment and resources management, the Group follows
close to the national and regional environmental laws and regulations.
The Group is also committed to improving and implementing effective
environment management policies and measures. During the year, the
Group was not punished by environmental authority due to material
violation of environmental laws and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly conducted in offices without plant
facilities, significant discharges or hazardous wastes. The Group has
always vigorously advanced the implementation of various environmental
policies and utilized a series of recovery measures to minimize wastes
including various sorted collections and waste management before
delivery of waste to the property management company of buildings for
uniform recovery and treatment.
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In addition, the Group vigorously supports, promotes the green office
plan and implements paper recycling measures to reduce the great paper
consumption in offices. Paper recycling boxes are placed beside printers
and duplicating machines to facilitate recycling. The old printers and used
toner cartridges will also be recycled by suppliers to reduce general
wastes. Moreover, as an energy saving measure in offices, the air
conditioners are collectively set for the offices of the Group and will be
turned off when they are not used to reduce unnecessary energy
consumption. The green office plan will help the Group’s staff to form the
environmental awareness and habit of energy and water conservation to
jointly build a green work place.

Resources Consumption

In the year, the total electricity consumption of the Group was
approximately 11,437kWh, the total gasoline consumption was
approximately 4,254 litres and the total water consumption was
approximately 952msa.
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Category of resources Unit Value
EiRER B BE
Electricity kWh 11,437
Gasoline Litre 4,254
it A5y

Water m? 952

7K Sk

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

NY LIMITED 47
RN AR AR

Do pARp e



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B LR ARE

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group’s carbon emissions is composed of two parts, i.e. carbon
emissions directly resulting from gasoline consumption and indirectly
related to electricity purchase. In the year, the total carbon emissions of
the Group was approximately 17.3437 tonnes.

BEREHFNE

REBERRERED BMEZD - F—FH2E

RAammEZEENIREERE - %—*1 =R
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PEME KA AH17.3437 1 o

Category of emissions Unit Value

BEREE R By 2E

Carbon emissions (scope 1) tCOe 11.3153

IxBER 2 (#E—) e — ’ﬂb REE

Carbon emissions (scope 2) tCOe 6.0284

B2 (FBE ) e — ’ﬂb REE

In addition, the emissions of SOx and NOx by the vehicles of the Group ~ R4} - EEHFHRE M RAE/LWHERE D

were 0.0625 kg and 2.8892 kg, respectively.

711 £0.0625 AT %2 2.8892 AT ©

Air Pollutants Unit Value
ZRI5EY B HE
Sulfur oxides (SOx) kg 0.0625
m. Tt'ff@ (SOX) QFF

Nitrogen oxides (NOXx) kg 2.8892
RSP (NOx) NN

EMPLOYEE MANAGEMENT BB

Employment Policy and Labour Standards (B1, B4)

In recruitment and dismissal, the Group strictly hews to the employment
ordinances of the Mainland China and Hong Kong, and gives respect to
employees’ diversified capacities and background. Each employee is
entitled to equal employment opportunity regardless of gender, age, race,
religion, disability, marital status, social class or political background. In
addition to employment ordinances, the Group also complies with
relevant labour laws and regulations including the Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China and the Provisions on Prohibition of
Child Labour.

Anti-discrimination is an important factor considered in recruitment,
assessment and dismissal. For any case in relation to discrimination and
harassment, the Group will conduct earnest investigation and take
appropriate actions at its discretion. In the year, the Group did not violate
any law or regulation on labour employment, nor did it employ any child
or forced labour. As to employee benefit, the Company offers mandatory
provident fund and social security for employees and the management of
the Company regularly reviews the management and benefits system in
case of changes in labour law or other external environment, striving to
create a harmonious and comfortable working environment for
employees.
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Employees’ Background (B1)

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 22 employees. The
schematic diagrams of age distribution, gender distribution, education
distribution and geographic distribution of the Company’s employees are
as follows:

Age Distribution
Fio M

59%
63%

W<30 W30-50 >50

In the Company, employees aged under 30, 30 to 50, and over 50
account for 23%, 63% and 14% of total number of employees,
respectively, and the ratio of male to female employees is 0.7:1. Over
sixty percentage of employees possess a bachelor’s degree or above. In
respect of geographic distribution, the employees in Mainland China and

Hong Kong represent 86% and 14% of total number of employees,
respectively.

Education Distribution
=Y i
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B Bachelor’s degree or above K7 F| sk A 2/
M Below bachelor’s degree AZ AR LA 217
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Gender Distribution
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Development and Training (B3)

The Company attaches great importance to the development and training
of employees. Various opportunities for promotion, training and
development are offered to employees based on the Group’s business
needs as well as employees’ talents, experience and performance. The
Group encourages employees to attend relevant training courses with an
eye to facilitating employees’ improvement of their personal skills and
knowledge, thus enhancing the Group’s efficiency and competitiveness.

Health and Safety (B2)

[t is an unshirkable responsibility for the Group and its employees to
maintain the work environment healthy and safe. The Group has perfect
a safe facilities management system and all the subsidiaries regularly
review their internal work environment and safety policy, so as to ensure
that all operations and facilities tally with standards and regulations.
Besides, the Company provides training on occupational safety and
health for new comers, training on professional safety skills for new and
existing employees in different departments and on different positions,
and training and transmission of the latest occupational safety information
on fire safety for all employees on a regular basis. As to the reporting
mechanism, in case of any potential danger in office, employees can
report it through the Group’s safety reporting mechanism and the Group
will immediately conduct investigation and improvement to create a safe
and comfortable work environment. In the year, 22 employees of the
Company attended the training on occupational safety and health and
the coverage of safety training reached 100%. There was no occupational
injury accident within the Group in the year.

COMPLIANCE OPERATION
Supply Chain Management (B5)

The Group is committed to setting up of a win-win supply and demand
cooperation relationship, strictly selecting suppliers and prudently
considering the certifications in relation to product quality and
environmental protection. The Group also regularly assesses suppliers to
establish a stable supply chain. In case of disqualified supplier, the
Group, upon confirmation through inspection, will immediately terminate
the contract and solve the problem to ensure product quality.
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Privacy Protection and Product Responsibility (B6)

To maintain the security of customer information and safeguard the
privacy of personal information is one of the core tasks of the Group. The
Company also strictly complies with the Personal Data (PRIVACY)
Ordinance (Chapter 486). Through the preparation of comprehensive
service behavior and professional code of conduct, it is prohibited to
transmit or disclose any unauthorized confidential information and
customer information to ensure security and confidentiality of customer
information.

In addition, the Group has a perfect quality control system in place for all
the products and services sold. Product quality is in line with safety and
health regulations and remains stable for a long time. The Company has
a special channel for prompt treatment to customers’ query, feedback,
complaints and relevant after-sales services. The Company values
customers’ complaints and conducts internal investigation through fair,
open and just means provisions of investigation results and reasons will
be provided to the customers affected and subsequent remedial
measures will be taken. The Company also regularly conducts spot
check of product quality and reviews the aspects for improvement
according to customers’ opinions and complaints, so as to improve the
product and service level of the Company.

Anti-corruption (B7)

To achieve sustainable development of the Company, the primary
condition is to be honest. The Group has prepared a series of anti-
corruption policies and clear code of conduct for employees to prevent
bribery and corruption. In addition, the Group encourages the
stakeholders including suppliers, customers and employees to propose
opinions on anti-corruption policies and measures of the Group, thus to
continuously improve the anti-corruption management system. In the
year, the Group did not receive any report in relation to bribery and
corruption.

Care for Community (B8)

As an enterprise citizen being responsible for the society, the Group
proactively fulfills its due corporate responsibilities, with a view to
promoting cultural exchange and joint development with the community.
The Group also vigorously supports and encourages employees to
participate in voluntary services of community and advocates care for
community, to make contributions to an inclusive community.
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CONTENT INDEX

RERSI

KPIs
BARERER

Hong Kong Stock Exchange ESG Report Index
BRFTESG | & 155

Section/Remarks
=0 f

A. Environmental
A RIE

Aspect A1
[EE Al

Emissions
23587

General Disclosure
— B R

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and

nonhazardous waste.

BABERNOREREHEN  MKRTHWNEES  FEREEEE

MEELSH -

Environmental Policy and
Resources Management
Measures

RRBRREREETE

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
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(o) BFEBEITABERTENIERERE KR
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KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Environmental Policy and
PER iR SE S AR R HE BB - Resources Management
Measures
REBEREREBEAA
KPIA1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where | Environmental Policy and
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | Resources Management
facility). Measures
RERBAKRE (AME) R(NER)  ZE(WMUBESE | REBRRERERERA
iz ~ BHEEMEAE) ©
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | The Company’s operations are
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | mainly conducted in offices and
facility). do not generate hazardous
FREAXAEREEDRS (CAWETE) K(WERA) - BE (MEAEE | wastes.
S8 - BEXRBFE) - RAUPHREELE RE U TESE
BEREZEY)
KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | Subject to uniform recycling by

the property management
company of building
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KPIs Hong Kong Stock Exchange ESG Report Index Section/Remarks
BRENER B ATESG M &1 5 BH R
KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results | As the Company’s operations are
achieved. mainly conducted in offices, the
HAREBE 2R B RAFER - measures to mitigate emissions
do not apply
NAPHAEELR/E - NEAR
AR HERE B 1
KPIA1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are | Subject to uniform recycling by
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. the property management
HWLEREBEENEZEEYN L  RIEELENEENLFTER | company of building
Ro RERNEYEER QRS —EWE
b2
Aspect A2 Use of Resources
A2 &R A

General Disclosure
— R R

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.
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Environmental Policy and
Resources Management
Measures

REBREREREBFE

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. | Environmental Policy and
electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. | Resources Management
per unit of production volume, per facility). Measures
RENE S HERE R SEEER(OE - meoh) BFEE (AT | BREBERLERERNE
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KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of | Environmental Policy and
production volume, per facility). Resources Management
BEKEREE (WA GESEMN - FERZMTE) Measures

RIEBRMEREER A

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results | Environmental Policy and
achieved. Resources Management
H il pE IR A=A I R FTIS AR - Measures

REBRENREREEA

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that | Environmental Policy and
is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results | Resources Management
achieved. Measures
R SKEGEAKOR AT AEMEE - REBEARKEGESIR | BREEREREREERE
TR -

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) | Irrelevant to the Company’s

and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
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Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

[ETE A3 RERARAER

General Disclosure

—RR IR

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
BRI ABIRIE R AABRENERTZEREE -

Environmental Policy and
Resources Management
Measures

REBREREREBAE

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the | Environmental Policy and
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to | Resources Management
manage them. Measures
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B. Social

B. &g

Aspect B1 Employment

[Z [ B1 (=

General Disclosure
— R ER

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BT RE  BREIEST  LIERS - R TERE %

Employee Management —
Employment Policy and Labour
Standards, Employees’
Background
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KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and | Employee Management —
geographical region. Employment Policy and Labour
IR - EBEER - FiAR Kt B DREE A - Standards, Employees’
Background
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KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and | Employee Management —

geographical region.

RIER - FiRAR RIEREI D HEERKLE -

Employment Policy and Labour
Standards, Employees’
Background

ETER — BREERSITE

Bl BITE=S
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
oo s v A P NN~
R g ke aEmE

KPIs Hong Kong Stock Exchange ESG Report Index Section/Remarks
BRENER B R FTESG | EH1E 5 BH R

Aspect B2 Health and Safety

[ETH B2 REEZE

General Disclosure
— R R

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

BAREZ2TIERERREREEHEBELE TN

Employee Management — Health
and Safety
BETERE — @RéELE

@ BUR: &
(o) EFHBETABERTENMBBER LR
HER o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Employee Management — Health
AT EBEMILT N AZ MR o and Safety
BIER - @RERE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Employee Management — Health
AT EEATERE - and Safety
BTERE — @RELE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures | Employee Management — Health
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. and Safety
PR B E R R T 24 AREBRTREERE . | BIERE — BEEZSE
Aspect B3 Development and Training
[E 1 B3 BRE R E

General Disclosure

—ARIEEE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BHERAHEE BT LEBE M AHB R RRBEMBUR i3 EE) -

Employee Management —
Development and Training
BITERE — #RME

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee | Employee Management —
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). Development and Training
ZMRREESEN(NESRERE  PRAERES)EAS>NZIE | EITERE — BREEI
BEDL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender | Employee Management —

and employee category.
ZMRIRESRERED - BEEBTHRZ N TR o

Development and Training
BTER — BREIE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
oo s v A P NN~
R g ke aEmE

KPIs Hong Kong Stock Exchange ESG Report Index Section/Remarks
BRENER B R FTESG | EH1E 5 BH R
Aspect B4 Labour Standards

EEB4 B TAA

General Disclosure

Information on:

Employee Management —

— R R (@) the policies; and Employment Policy and Labour
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a | Standards
significant impact on the issuer BTERE — EFIE RS TR
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRI IEE T oa bl T
@ BE: &
(o) EFHBETABERTENBBER RN
B R} o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to | Employee Management —
avoid child and forced labour. Employment Policy and Labour
AR BB E AR R E T REHST - Standards
BTEE — EFEE RS TAL
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when | No relevant circumstances
discovered. occurred
HE IR E RSN ER A ISP PRI 2258 - EOIRABRIE R
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
[EEB5 HrEgER

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

Compliance Operation — Supply

of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how
they are implemented and monitored.

M EAERREmNEDN  MENTEREMNNHEEMER
LA R BB OIRAT R EER A -

—RR %R supply chain. Chain Management
ERHEENRIE I EREBBOR - AREE — HEEER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Compliance Operation — Supply
ZiEEsmHEREE - Chain Management
AREE — HEEER
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number | Compliance Operation — Supply

Chain Management
ARKE — HEEER

56 ANNUAL REPORT 2017

—T—LEER




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
oo s VA kk\
RIE - g kERWmE

KPIs Hong Kong Stock Exchange ESG Report Index Section/Remarks
BRENER B R FTESG | EH1E 5 BH R
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility

@ B6 EmEE

General Disclosure

—RRIFE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of

redress.

BRMRHERNRENREERZS  BS  BEREMMEBEEMN

Compliance Operation — Privacy
Protection and Product
Responsibility
BRRE - REBLLERELE

KR = -
@ &
(o) EFHBEITABERZENBEEEZIRD
HEH -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls | No relevant circumstances
for safety and health reasons. occurred
PEENRERERAHTALZERFIEHAMARKNA DL o | EMUREBEER
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received | Compliance Operation — Privacy
and how they are dealt with. Protection and Product
BREANE R RREHIRFE R ARELTTE - Responsibility
BREE - RERILLERET
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting | The Company respects the
intellectual property rights. intellectual property of third
Rl R E RARIE A EREEENED - parties
NABEE=HHHERE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall | Compliance Operation — Privacy

procedures.
ot 2 10 E B2 N AE m B AR Fr -

Protection and Product
Responsibility
S - RERILLRERET
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
oo s VA /vh-\
RIE - g kERWmE

KPIs Hong Kong Stock Exchange ESG Report Index Section/Remarks
BRENER B ATESG M &1 5 BH R
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | Compliance Operation — Privacy

how they are implemented and monitored. Protection and Product

HUUH B E BRRE RFLBEGE - URBERITRERE - Responsibility

ERKE - REBMWREREE

Aspect B7 Anti — corruption
[E M B7 -l

General Disclosure

—RIEE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Compliance Operation —
Anti-corruption
EREE - RER

BRI - R - BEFRARER
(@) B &
(o) EFHBEITABERZENBEBER KRN
HEH -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices | No relevant circumstances
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting | occurred
period and the outcomes of the cases. IR ARIE R
RERAAEETASEEEREWEEENESHARGNE
EPSE NS
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing | Compliance Operation —
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. Anti-corruption
P e e R B RIE T - ARABERITRERTE - SREE - RER
Aspect B8 Community Investment
[EE B8 HEIEE

General Disclosure
— R B ER

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

Care for community
iR

BEM RS EREREEMEHTERTENRREEBEDEE
AL A 5 B BUR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental | Care for community
concems, labour needs, health, culture, sport). va el
HIEREE(WHE BREE SIFK - @F- b 8@
B)e

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Care for community

EEIHREMPAER(MEERER) -

MR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN ZB AR E S

KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

FulE & 3 6F A5 PR A TR 8)

Tel &35 (852)2314 7999

Fax 1% #:(852) 21109498

E-mail & -F#45: info@ktccpa.com.hk

Room 701, 7/F., New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

FRAALR DL LA LA KAWL T < TH701%

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY
COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhejiang
RuiYuan Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 66 to 130, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

FIREEENRROBRAT
B AR R

(A EARAME MK IR HERAR)
=R

ARZEEEBZIIHNE 66 =130 B IIHES
ERBEBENBERRR(ERR D EEMBAR (5
BIESEDNGAMBERE  EPEER_-F
—tF T A=t - BNHREMBEIRARERE
ZRALFENGEBEELEMZAKER - K4
RaSBHRIGEARSNER  URKRAMBER
R BRIESIHBERME -

FZBARE  ZERAVERRCRESES
AAg((HESHAAE ) BHENE BT H®R
ESEB([HEVBRELN D EERQAFHR
B EEBR_T—+tF+-_A=+—H2&K4
FHHRR  REBEZBLFEZREMBERR
DA ERe  VEERBREBAGI 2 HE
REMEZSHE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN ZB AR E S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB7,175,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 and, as of that
date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB2,255,000. These conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in Note 3, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHANRE S

Key audit matters

RRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEANELZNAEERRELER

Valuation of trade and bills receivables

EWEZRAREREEME

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements

ZRAREMBRRMEE21

We identified the valuation of trade and bills receivables
as a key audit matter due to the use of judgment and
estimates in assessing the recoverability of trade and
bills receivables.
BMRRERESEFLERERLEREAREZSE
B RASEEEKE SRR RERERELE K E
R {66 R B9 )l S A et A R

In determining the allowance for trade and bills
receivables, the management considers the credit
history including default or delay in payments, settlement
records, subsequent settlements and aging analysis of
the trade and bills receivables.
RETRKESERANEREERER EEES®S
BEEDH  BEBKSERMNR  #EIH% Hig
EEREWE FER K EWRE 2 BRI DT -

At 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade and
bills receivables is approximately RMB20,878,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB343,000).

RZTE—+F+_A=+—H BREFEARERK
FRZEEEARNARE 20,878,000 T (EHKRHAR
# 343,000 TLEY RER B ) o

Details of the trade and bills receivables are set out in
Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

JEWE SRR RENRE 2 BERN R e B HE
BisE21 o

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

Our procedures in relation to valuation on trade and bills
receivables included:

BMBRELRE S EAMEREREENRFEEEHRE

o Obtaining an understanding of how allowance for doubtful
debts is estimated by the management;
o THRERENMMGFRIRERS

° Reviewing the aging analysis of the trade and bills
receivables throughout the year to understand the
settlement patterns by the customers;

o FEHERWEIRFAREREENEEFE KK DT -
NTHEPREER

° Testing the aging analysis of the trade and bills receivables,
on a sample basis, to the source documents; and

o HIBRBIEYE FRA N EWEE R S ITE RGBS
&

o Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability of trade
and bills receivables with reference to the credit history
including default or delay in payments, settlement records,
subsequent settlements and aging analysis of each
individual customer.

s Z2EFHEFITFBFEHBRKERMNR
BEERERSTHEERS  UTHERESERR
EWEERAIWEIEE 2581 -

ER K

In=E=
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHANRE S

Key audit matters

BREEREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMNERNATEERARERSE

Contingent liabilities

RREE

Refer to Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements

2GR MBHRERM T34

Due to the level of judgement relating to recognition,
valuation and presentation of provisions and contingent
liabilities, this is considered to be a key audit matter.
EREBENIABENER  HERZIIEENH
EreizfE - SRR RERERZEIR -

The assessment of the existence of the present legal or
constructive obligation, analysis of the probability of the
related payment and analysis of a reliable estimate,
requires management’s judgement to ensure
appropriate accounting or disclosures.
AERBEAERETEBEAEFE DM BBMNRD
ATae M R AT Al SEfh AT R E IR B AR H B - ARERIE
HEE ST BRIB S REE -

As of 31 December 2017 the Group had contingent
liabilities that arising from a claim from a former
employee for approximately HK$2,600,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB2,340,000). A provisions for claim
of approximately RMB86,000 was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2016 and there was no further
provision for the year ended 31 December 2017. Details
of contingent liabilities are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.
RZZE—+HF+_A=+—H EXEE—ZAEER
MWREEESAEEL 26000008 T(HERHOAR
#2,340,0007L) - BE-_T—RF+-_A=+—HI
FEEHRARERFENHARES6,000T At &#F
Rt FFT A=t B FEWEE TR -
SARBEZFIBENERE M B RRMIE34 -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and

our auditor’s report thereon (“Other Information”).
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Our procedures in relation to the provision of claim included:

BMBABRERGNRFEEEHE

Reviewing judgements made by the Court;

FEBDABERROHIR ¢

Discussing significant litigation and claims with the
Group’s management and assessing their processes to
identify new possible obligations and change in existing
obligations for compliance with group policy;

H BEEEEEENWmEANFANRRERNEHEE
RIFTH AR B ENRERA T ETEBBRMEYRE
BIEEHHNES

Performing legal search to ensure the completeness of
litigation and claims;
EITERIRTARRF R L REE MR

Obtaining and reviewing letters from the Group’s
external legal advisors regarding the likely outcome and
magnitude of and exposure to the relevant litigation and
claims;

ERLERN SE£EINEEZBEMAREEFALR
BH)FT RE 45 SR R A2 5 DA I P HE LB 915 BR

Reviewing minutes of board meetings; and

EHNEFEGACE M

Assessing the appropriateness of presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
FHEGE M MEME R BERNEE M o

BERREFAHEMENEE - HWENBREF
BAFMEOER  ETRIEGFE P BHRE LI
UL HR B SRE ([HAER -



Independent Auditor’s Report
BN ZB AR E S

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO
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o RAEZEEMENEREMTANRES
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN ZB AR E S

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

64

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN ZB AR E S

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chow Yiu Wah Joseph

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number: PO4686
Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

fre B N E A 2

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—Z—tF+_A=+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaF AR¥T T ARBFT
Revenue Uk &= 9 44,529 14,337
Cost of sales SHE KR (43,905) (12,648)
Gross profit EF 624 1,689
Other income HAw A 9 14 5
Other gains and losses H itz K st 11 (556) (445)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary —EIM B AR E L NEBE 41 (34) -
Gain on disposal of investment properties H &35 &Y% RIBENAE
and prepaid lease payment TR MR - 2,343
Administrative expenses THER (5,217) (6,218)
Finance costs BhE RN 12 (1,948) -
Loss before taxation MRBLATEE 13 (7,117) (2,626)
Income tax (expense) credit Frig®i () &R 14 (58) 2
Loss for the year RRARFEE AES
attributable to owners of FAEE
the Company (7,175) (2,624)
Other comprehensive income Hih2mEKA
Items that may be reclassified HEnEHS>EERHZ2ER
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBEENIERZHE
translation of foreign operations 115 (76)
Total other comprehensive income FREMEZEWRALALE
for the year 115 (76)
Total comprehensive income RATHEE AEMN
for the year attributable to FRE2EWALE
owners of the Company (7,060) (2,700)
Loss per share SREER
(RMB’ cents) (AR®%) 18
Basic EAK (1.44) (0.52)
Diluted i3 N/A T3 N/A T3 A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re ISR

At 31 Deoember 2017
RZZE—tF+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—=F— + qs AN i
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
et AR¥ET T ARBFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FIRBEE
Plant and equipment W= & R 19 64 91
64 91
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 20 1,784 2,159
Trade and bills receivables FEUNE 5B R B IR R 21 20,878 5,705
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - me Rk
other receivables Ei\MJ?‘EHﬁZEEM 22 596 46
Paid in advances BTER RIE 381 4,451
Pledged bank deposits EHRAIRITTR 23 - 102
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 24 5,265 2,834
28,904 15,297
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Trade payables EE SRR 25 14,799 4,367
Other payables and accruals B R NERTE A 26 7,564 2,471
Receipt in advances TR FRIA 207 4,571
Amount due to a director JERF—REEFEB 27 539 -
Amount due to a former director JE—RRIEERIE 27 1,775 11,206
Amount due to a major shareholder M —ZEBRERIE 28 275 2,000
Amount due to a former shareholder TET—Z R I8 28 - 31,191
Dividends payables FET R B 29 4,440 4,440
Tax payable FERTRRIE 40 -
Other borrowings HEMEE 30 1,520 6,220
31,159 66,466
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAETFE (2,255) (51,169)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Loan from a major shareholder RE—BEBRENER 31 38,464 -
NET LIABILITIES FEE (40,655) (51,078)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE BRI ER
At 31 December 2017
RZE—tF+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
et AR®T T ARBFIT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR#E
Share capital P& 32 50,000 50,000
Reserves e (90,655) (101,078)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY B AN 5 4t (40,655) (51,078)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 130 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2018 and
are signed on its behalf by:

He Keng
A8
Director

EF

68 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
T LR

FEOEEF 10 ENGAMBHRERDKEZTERN
“E-N\EF=ZAZT=AMAERKRETE - WHh
TIEERKREE

Wu Shanhong
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o

He= N /2 g=
1: /\ll\ﬂ%@]%

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAREEAELL
Statutory
Share Capital Other surplus Translation Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
EEER
BE  ERRME EftRE  H0%E  ERRE  RHER EH)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR AR%TT ARETR
(Note i) (Note i) (Note i)
(HfzED) (&) (FifsEii)
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~F—-A—H 50,000 40,449 256,623 24,998 13 (420,461) (48,378)
Total comprehensive FREARANEER
income for the year - - - - (76) (2,624) (2,700)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+-A=t—H 50,000 40,449 256,623 24,998 (63) (423,085) (61,078)
Avising from loan from RE—BEERE
amajor shareholder JER - - 9,483 - - - 9,483
Waiver of amount due to HEREN 2T 2RE
amajor shareholder A - - 8,000 - - - 8,000
Total comprehensive FRAZEMAERE
income for the year - - - - 115 (7,175) (7,060)
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+&
+=ZA=1+-H 50,000 40,449 274,106 24,998 52 (430,260) (40,655)
Notes: LiE=3
0} CAPITAL RESERVE (i) BERFHE

(W)

)

Capital reserve includes the share premium arising from the issuance of H shares after
deduction of the respective share issuance costs of the Company.

OTHER RESERVE

Other reserve represents the waiver of the amounts due to a former major shareholder
upon change in shareholding in the Company in previous year. The movement of other
reserve of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 represented the
difference between the fair value of the loan from a major shareholder and the amount
received in May 2017 as described in Note 31 and waiver of amount due to a major
shareholder.

STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE

The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) require the appropriation of 10% of their profit
after income tax determined under the PRC accounting standards each year to the
statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital.
According to the provision of the Company’s Articles of Association, under normal
circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall only be used for making up losses,
capitalisation into share capital and expansion of the Company’s production and
operation. For the capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the
remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered share
capital.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

(i)

(iii)

EXRBRBEARRDBEITHREENBRMD EE(EMK
HRRIRR D BATRA)

Hitf#
HitFBERNA DR EEZSHRA R - FEEN &
HIJI;(J&% IE FEERBE—E-LF+=A

_+ ALFENRMFEEZESERE - BEERRE
R DFERR ZF—HF 1A WREHFIE (anH 531
Fﬁélit)ZfaﬁE’U%%ﬁ&%@?ﬂ%ﬁ—%IEHQ?%&Iﬁ

EEBBRARS

ARBREFEREARKME ([HE ) KZAKERR
MARERAAURE  SFABREPEGHERFE
MBRFTEREETET 10 BNNEERBRAES  HE
EERBABSEREDFEMBRARE0% BLE - REAR
RAMRRERBURE E—RERT  EEBBRR
BEETRERHEER  BERXBARBRAARNEE
&%i MEEERBOESERTRAMNE @ EERR
RESHHBNG LR EM AR 25%
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=AN A —
;ZR/T\ = fﬁimi%
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Loss before taxation bR AT E 1B (7,117) (2,626)
Adjustments for: BB TSIIEE A
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment HINTE N ERIE = 121
Bank interest income ERITH BURA (3] 3)
Depreciation of plant and equipment = K iR I E 36 39
Depreciation of investment properties EENE - 29
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYERBNHEERIEDN
and prepaid lease payment g a5 - (2,343)
Finance costs BE KA 1,948 -
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary —EIM B A R HEEE LB E 34 -
Impairment loss on trade and other JEURE 5 BR 5K K HAth FE I BR 3N %
receivables and paid in advances EREMNFKIEARESE = 445
Reversal of impairment loss on E 5 EWERFOREBERE
trade receivables (103) -
Written off of trade and other receivables T 58 FE UE 5 BR 3R K H At FE IR BR 3R
and paid in advances N AFER A 659 -
Provision for claim RIEBE = 86
Written off of plant and equipment TSR N 2R A = 29
Operating cash flows before movements &EELEHANLERSHE
in working capital (4,545) (4,223)
Decrease in inventories HFERL 376 227
Increase in trade and bills receivables RS SRR N FE N Z 4R 18 N (15,440) (5,069)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, AR - ke REMERIRK
deposits and other receivables (3 hn) kA (569) 281
Decrease in paid in advances B TR AS SRR R 4,031 1,341
Increase in trade payables FETE 2 BRFIE N 10,304 2,246
Increase in other payables and accruals H AR R S T B A 3N 5,093 614
Decrease in receipt in advances TE W FRIE R, (4,473) -
Cash used in operations RELKFMARS (5,223) (4,583)
Income tax (paid) refunded (B REFEH (18) 38
NET CASH USED IN REXBFRRARALFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (5,241) (4,545)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=AN A —
meiRemER
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF T —RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTF T

INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETER
Purchase of plant and equipment BERE&RE 9) -
Net proceed from disposal of investment HEREYENTENHEERIED

properties and prepaid lease payment FriS 38558 = 7,287
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EHEAIRITEROR D 107 -
Interest received B FIE 2 3
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETEHFBREFHE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 100 7,290
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BESEE
Repayments of other borrowings BEEHMEER (4,700) (6,300)
Advance from a director KE—BEFHERK 511 -
Repayments to a former director BiE—ZAESEHE (9,622) -
Advance from a major shareholder KE—BEBRERBR 6,275 2,000
(Repayments to) advance from (BE) KRB — LR

a former shareholder (31,191) 1,533
Proceed from loan from a major shareholder KE—EBXERENERREZIE 46,000 -
Other borrowings raised BEEHEMER = 1,520
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) @& RERE (FTA)REFHE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7,273 (1,247)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRASEEEBEMFHR

CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,132 1,498
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REDNAERASEEER

THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,834 1,373
Effect of foreign exchanges rate changes R TR 299 (37
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERANREREEEEER

THE END OF THE YEAR,

represented by bank balances and cash BNERTTHEHNIRS 5,265 2,834
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o

& B A5 R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—

1.

72

Tt A=T-ALAE
GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited
(the “Company”) is a joint stock limited liability company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and its
shares are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding and ultimate
holding company is Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Robot Co., Ltd, a
company incorporated in the PRC.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the Annual Report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“BMB”). Other than the subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong
whose functional currency is United States Dollar (“USD”), the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) is RMB.

The principal activities of the Group are sales of controller systems
for electronic equipment and electronic component and
subassembly for electronic appliances in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o

& B AR R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—

2.

T LF A=t ALLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatory effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Disclosure Initiative

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also
require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in
cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed:
(i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from
obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii)
the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these
items is provided in note 37. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the additional
disclosure in note 37, the application of these amendments has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=AN A7 £ =3
e IR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_HA=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

BRI REET BB BRESE
A(TEEMBREEA]) — &

SREMERRER T REEBTE
B IR E R

AN BB ATEM T O 2 B/ E M RE
W] RIERT R AU B IRE LR :

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments!

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?
Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs and interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value at
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” — Continued

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company
anticipate the following potential impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9:

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result
in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
costs and other items that subject to the impairment provisions
upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised by
Group as at 1 January 2018 would be slightly increased as
compared to the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS 39
mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on rental and
other receivables and fixed deposits with financial institutions. Such
further impairment recognised under expected credit loss model
would reduce the opening retained profits at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — CONTINUED

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
— Continued

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

e Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

e Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Stepb5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures, however,
they do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised
in the respective reporting periods.
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T rEt-A=t—ALAE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
and those classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under the
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing and operating cash flows.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
T LR

2.

FERAHIREETE B BRESE
ATEEMBREER]D — &

BRMBHREERE1657EE
EEMBMEEF 165K ABANEELH
ARHBARERBAZGFRESIA—E
2EER - FBPERELERIE 165N
HAERERREE G EAF17THRBAER
Rz -

ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁifﬁﬁﬂ%16%E$ETJ§Fﬁ%%%E|J§§
BHEPEGRESHERRBEL
fﬁ?\LﬁﬁfﬁfﬁﬁifﬁﬁéﬁFZfﬁfﬁl\ ey
HEEREHEZZRAABASTEE
Bk - Sl ABABEAH SRR L
REEENERAGEZRAMRK -

FREEEVSERKNAGTE  BEEBZKAR
CEFHISMERERIN) B 25T E ROREE
Bt WHEMEHFE2HERGEE
LR HEBEVFEEENKGEER
IR ZBREE BE - HEEEME
FEE)FMERHAENFRUAREEE 27
ZELAE - RBEREZ2HEMS - &
SEEBAZIABAENEENRTAE R
EERHEI MR BRRENMEEZR
ERenE  MEMKEHEENKEN A
KERSRE © $ETF€/%H7IW$&¢/H'J%
16?‘)? BEMEE
SEL J?%mﬂé&%«%*fﬁé\ﬁEZZKi&%‘J

E‘Bﬁ

m

Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁ/\/ﬁ#FﬁEiﬂE& F BERPBHR
HERIF16FAMRET B G ERF 17

vﬁZﬁiﬁA FHRTE  WHEBZ KA

BHEN HEAKLHENMERE -

BN - BAEMBREERIE 165 BRI

BEZHRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o

& B AR R P o

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—
2.

T LF A=t ALLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB6,000 as disclosed in note 35. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group wiill
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the
application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
Based on a preliminary assessment, the Directors do not expect
there is material impact on the future consolidated financial
performance and position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable individual HKFRSs, which is a
collective term that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and interpretations issued
by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CQO”). These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (“GEM Listing Rules”).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
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80

Basis of preparation

(a)

Going concern

During the year, the Group incurred a net loss for the year of
approximately RMB7,175,000. At 31 December 2017, the
Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB2,255,000 and capital deficiency of approximately
RMB40,655,000. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore
it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liability
in the normal course of business. Nevertheless, the Directors
are of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due for the next twelve months from the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements on the basis that:

(i) The Directors will strengthen to implement measures
aiming of improving the working capital and cash flows
of the Group including closely monitoring the general
administrative expenses and operating costs;

(i) a major shareholder of the Company confirms to
provide adequate financial support to the Group as is
necessary to ensure its continuing operation for a
period at least twelve months from the date of this
report;

(i) to raise funds by way of issuing additional equity or
debt securities; and

(iv)  to negotiate with certain bankers to obtain additional
banking facilities, if necessary.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable to
continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to the consolidated financial statements to
write down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities respectively. The effect of these adjustments
have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Basis of preparation — Continued

(b)

Historical cost basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Tt A=T-ALAE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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T—LF A=t BILEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for discounts and sales related
taxes.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Tt A=T-ALAE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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T—LF A=t BILEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Impairment losses on tangible assets — Continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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T rEt-A=t—ALAE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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T rEt-A=t—ALAE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Taxation — Continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current tax and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.
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T—LF A=t BILEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the category; loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables (including trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivable where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.
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T rEt-A=t—ALAE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables
and other receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 days and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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T—LF A=t BILEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets — Continued

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods (see accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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T rEt-A=t—ALAE

Financial instruments — Continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables,
amount due to a director/former director/a major shareholder/
former shareholder, dividends payables, other borrowings and loan
from a major shareholder) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate), a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefits schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to
the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued 3. EASEX — &

Cash and cash equivalents RekRELHEER

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial REMBRREANIRTER B SEE
position comprise of cash on hand and at banks with a maturity of FERINHAER=(EAIATHRITIRE -
three months or less. For the purpose of the consolidated MEmeReanEerkns  RekRE&SE
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash HEBELEXRENRE MEHER -
and short-term deposits as defined above.

Related parties BER

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that FER RERREMERENER (2R
is preparing its financial statements (“reporting entity”). BERDEBFANALRIERE-

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related

a) HBATAL BIRZALHZALH

to a reporting entity if that person: MM MERA EE
() has control or joint control over the reporting entity; () PRI ERIEHI2REEE
(i) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or iy HEREBBEEATE: I
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) BREREBHIELSRATNEE
reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity. BERENXE
(b)  An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following b) MEBKES TNIUEMEY - BNEZ®
conditions applies: HEEBE

()  The entity and the reporting entity are members of the () ZELCHERELER—%E
same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary WK EARI(BNERE - WE
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). REIRFARMEBRRZEES

BiE) o

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other i) —HAEBARSEEBHHEAR
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a AlREEanE(IE—HEM
group of which the other entity is a member). BEBETKERATINEZEQ

Al AEERE) -
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. iy MEEBHYAR—F=F84
i o

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HEBAE=-AEENSZ

other entity is an associate of the third entity. m% ME—ERBREZFE=F
= E/ijiM/'\ﬁj o
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued 3. EASGEX — &

Related parties — Continued BER — &
(o)  An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following b) (WEERHFE Tﬁ‘JET—J et - BB 2
conditions applies: — Continued EREHE: — &

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V) ZELREWMERYHEERE
benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an BEHEENEEREESREN
entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting M A BEBEAETE - W2
entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are BEEAT ABEBEFE
also related to the reporting entity. AR EDNEETHERE

BERE

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (Vi) ZERX@IBFTEHAA T
identified in (a). S EEH o

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over (i) (@O)BMILAA TEHZEE
the entity or is a member of the key management FERY ’EHZ?% EE(KZE
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). GAE0RSE/NE]D) E’J ZTEEEA

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZEBIEMBEEETEM
part, provides key management personnel services to RERARRREEEIREE
the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting BB ARREREIZEEEREA
entity. SR -

Close members of the family of a person are those family members FATHIFREREZEER ZFREEA
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person FEINTHAZZATHENRERKE -

in their dealings with the entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimation (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the Group accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern consideration

The assessments of the going concern assumptions involve making
judgement by the Directors, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The Directors consider that the Group has the ability to
continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively
may cast significant doubt about the going concern assumptions
are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainly at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continued

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade and bills
receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and adjusts credit limits based on payment history and the
customers’ current credit-worthiness, as determined by the review
of their current credit information. The Group continuously monitors
collections and payments from its customers and maintains a
provision for estimated credit losses have historically been within
the Group’s expectations and the Group will continue to monitor
the collections from customers and maintain an appropriate level of
estimated credit losses. A reversal of impairment loss of
approximately RMB1083,000 (2016: Impairment loss of
RMB445,000) was recognised for the year.

Allowance for inventories

The Directors review an aging analysis at the end of each reporting
period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slowing-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The
Directors estimate the net realisable value for finished goods based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and make allowance for
obsoletes items. An impairment loss of approximately RMB647,000
(2016: Nil) was recognised for the year.

Provision for claim

During the current and prior years, the Group had been involved in
a dispute (Note 34). The Directors determine the provision for claim
based on their best estimates according to their understanding of
legal advice. Where the final outcome of the claim and negotiation
with the respective party is different from the estimation made by
the directors, such difference will impact the provision for claims in
the year in which such determination is finalised. A provision for
claim of RMBNIl was made for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: RMB86,000).
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through optimisation of the debt and equity

balance.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

EXEpEER

AEEEEBEEANABRASEETH
ERERELCEER  RANERELER
MigEm BRI EkeE - BREFREAKR
B3 o

RBEHRNERBBELXWT

2017 2016
—E—+F T—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Debts (Note (i)
Bank balances and cash

Net debt

Capital deficiency (Note (ii))

Net debt to equity ratio

Notes:

(0] Debts comprise amount due to a director/former director/a major shareholder/
a former shareholder, other borrowings and loan from a major shareholder.

(ii) Capital deficiency includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the
Company.
* As the Group had a net deficiency in capital at 31 December 2017 and 2016,

the Group’s gearing ratio as at that date were not applicable. The directors of
the Company have given careful consideration on the measures currently
undertaken in respect of the Group’s liquidity position. The directors of the
Company believe that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due based on the Group’s working capital sufficiency

plans.

BB ()
WITHEB LIRS

FERS

B A AL (B AE (i)

AHERE SR

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

42,573 50,617
(5,265) (2,834)
37,308 47,783
(40,655) (561,078)
N/A* N/A*
T Sl

BT -

() BEHREEN —2EE HES—HTE
R/ —EZHRRRBESEHEMEERR
BE—BEERRZER -

(i ERBHABEARTHEE ARENRAEER
R frbfs o

. MR ARER Bt FR-E—RF+=
A=+ —HZERERFEAKT - A%
ERZAZEABBLERINER - ARF
EECDEREZEEAMAKEZRBE SR
REBM 2 - AARERHRE  REAE
EEEEC R RMAE  BEzEETE
NPz HBEE -
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B 75 L B B B
Categories of financial instruments TRITAER
2017 2016
—E—t&F TE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Financial assets TRLEE
Loan and receivables B3R AR 3R
(including bank balances and cash) (BRERITERRES) 26,566 8,687
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEAAVIRZeREE 68,816 60,759

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables, other payables,
dividend payable, amount due to a director/former director/a major
shareholder/a former shareholder, other borrowings and loan from
a major shareholder are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on timely and effective
manner.

Currency risk

The Group operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB and USD. The Group’s foreign
currency is mainly HKD. The Group has certain portion of the other
receivables, bank balances and cash and other payables that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency to
which they relate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES — Continued

Currency risk — Continued

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end of
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

MHEEAREENEERBEE — &

EmEk — &

TRIINFAEERREHROERBEER
BE (ALY HRN BRI ER AN
B HE) IS B ER AR -

2017 2016
—E—t& it B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFT
Assets EE 7 69
Liabilities BfE - (936)
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging REE B AW EINEE RS - A 5
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange BESEIIINERK  WERNEREZEE
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency ¥R E AINE R R o
exposure should the need arise.
Interest rate risk R 2= 3 By
The Group do not expose any fair value interest rate risk in relation REE_E—+F+_A=1t—"HIFE "

to fixed-rate bank borrowings for the year ended 31 December
2017.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its variable rate bank balances. The Group considered that the
effect of the cash flow interest rate is minimal and no sensitivity
analysis to interest rate risk is presented.
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T rEt-A=t—ALAE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES — Continued

Credit risk

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
the failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
and other debtor at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 72% (2016: 35%)
and 98% (2016: 63%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and authorised banks in the PRC with high-credit
rating.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as at 31 December 2017 as
its financial assets due within one year was less than its financial
liabilities due within one year. The Group had net current liabilities
of approximately RMB2,255,000 as at 31 December 2017. The
liquidity of the Group depends upon the positive cash flows
expected to be generated from the Group’s future operations and
successfully obtain new working capital in order to meet the
Group’s future working capital and financial requirements. Details of
which are set out in Note 3.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES — Continued

7.

7. MBEREENEERBEK — &

Liquidity tables REBETK
Within 1 year Between Between Total
or repayable 1and2 2and5 undiscounted Carrying
on demand years years cash flow amounts
o RERH
REXEE -EZRE MEELE HERELE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTL AREFTL AREFIL AREFTL ARBTTL
At 31 December 2017 RZE—-t&+ZA=1-H
Other financial liabiities at REHI AR Hth
amortised cost: ¢HEE:
Trade payables ENESER 14,799 = = 14,799 14,799
Other payables E R 7,004 - - 7,004 7,004
Amount due to a director ER—ZEZTR 539 - - 539 539
Amount due to a former director EN—%HEEE 1,775 - - 1,775 1,775
Amount due to a major shareholder  EN—Z T BREFE 275 - - 275 275
Dividends payables JEfRRE 4,440 - - 4,440 4,440
Other borrowings EtofeE 1,520 - - 1,520 1,520
Loan from a major shareholder RE—LEEREZER - - 46,000 46,000 38,464
30,352 - 46,000 76,352 68,816
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+ZA=1-H
Other financial liabiities at REEN AR H At
amortised cost: PHER:
Trade payables ERESEN 4,367 - - 4,367 4,367
Other payables Hft FERTERSE 1335 - - 1,33 133
Amount due to a former director ERN—ZaEEE 11,206 - - 11,206 11,206
Amount due to a major shareholder ~ ER—Z T ERRFE 2,000 - - 2,000 2,000
Amount due to a former shareholder BT — & AR ZE 31,191 - - 31,191 31,191
Dividends payables JEfIRRE 4,440 - - 4,440 4,440
Other borrowings EtfEE 6,220 - - 6,220 6,220
60,759 - - 60,759 60,750
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8. FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices and ask prices, respectively;

° the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivate instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments;
and

° the fair value if non-optional derivative instrument is calculated
using quoted prices where such prices are not available, the
fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis
and the applicable curve for the duration of the instruments.
For option based derivative, the fair value is estimated using
option pricing model (for example, the Binomial model).

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values
due to their short-term maturities.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 9. WHEKkHMKA
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net W (IhAEAEB 2 L %5 ) f5AREE @b
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group to RAEFPHEE MU N FEIEE 0B IT
outside customers, net of discounts and sales related taxes. MM ERBANBIERA T -
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income for the year REEFE WG REMPASTET
are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREEF T
Revenue W %5
Sales of controller systems for electronic HEE TREBENLEFTHH
equipment and electronic component IR G RE
and subassembly for electronic B S ab
appliances 44,529 14,337
44,529 14,337
Other income EH AN
Bank interest income HRITHEMA 2 3
Sundry income HIEI A 12 2
14 5
SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 2 EBE K
For management purpose, the Group operates in one business unit REEME  AEEKEERNE X5
based on its products, and has only one reportable and operating BALE  WERE—EUEHRELED
segment which is controller systems for electronic equipment and o BEFREREFILRIZESIZE RS
electronic component and subassembly for electronic appliances. MEFHmEH -
Geographical information ihEE R

The Group’s business is primarily operated in the PRC. All of the
Group’s revenue is attributable to customers in Asia (mainly
including the PRC and Hong Kong).

An analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets by
geographical area in which the assets are located has not been
presented as they are substantially located in the PRC.
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued 10.

Major customers

Turnover from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total turnover of the Group are as follows:

DEER — &

FERF

RIERFE  REBAKERLXERR
HIB10%WEFP ZEXBEHIIT ¢

2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTT
Customer A 2B A 27,643 -
Customer B’ ZFEB! 4,861 -
Customer C! 2FEC 4,368 -
Customer D! =B D! - 2,596
Customer E! ZPEE! - 2,370
Customer F' ZEF - 1,745
Customer G! 2B G - 1,473
! Turnover from electronic appliances. ! KREEFHAMZEHERE-
11. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 11. HtWEREER
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBETIT
Reversal of impairment loss on FEWE 5 IR R B BB R
trade receivables 103 -
Impairment loss on trade and other FENSEE 5 AR R B HL A IR WAUBR R K
receivables and paid in advances EATEN FRIBREEE = (445)
Written off of trade and other receivables i EE FE U E 5 BR S E At FE UK AR 3K (503) -
Written off of paid in advances e B TR R (156) -
(556) (445)
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. @E R
2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTT
Imputed interest expense on loan from KE—BEERRERZ
a major shareholder HET AR 1,948 -
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13. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 13. BRBIAIEE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREEF T
Loss before taxation has been arrived B AIEE D 0K
at after charging: LATRIER -
Staff costs, excluding chairman, directors’ and & TAAN (R EFEEF »
supervisors’ emoluments EEREEHS)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind  — #& « TE R EMEWEF 1,314 1,683
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions ~ — iR /RK4E FIET 2 f5% 60 70
Total staff costs BB TR 1,374 1,753
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment BinTaENEENIE = 121
Depreciation of plant and equipment B K EITE 36 39
Depreciation of investment properties EMETE = 29
Total depreciation and amortisation TEREHBRE 36 189
Auditor’s remuneration ZEAT 2 500 541
Cost of inventories recognised ERERAFINFERA
as an expense 43,869 12,648
Net foreign exchange losses SNIE 518 FRE 5 29
Operating lease rentals for rented premises ~ HHEMEHRLEHER S 61 183
Written off of plant and equipment WEE RS ML = 29
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 14. FiBHEAX (ER)
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Hong Kong profits tax BEBFEH
— Current year —REE 58 -
— Over-provision in previous years —BEFE B = @
Income tax credit for the year FRATEHRER 58 ()
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT BIBEFRCEMERIE(REMBRIE]D

Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the Company and the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards. No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has
been provided for the year ended 31 December 2017 as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in the PRC for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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15.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) — Continued 14.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits
tax was made for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong

Kong for that year.

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

FreBiA< (EE) — &

EBFETIRF NG ERD R F &
16.5%:THE - HRAEBREBEE_ZT—+t
ERZE-RFTA=T—HIEFEY
REBAELETABERBEN - B ER
ZEERBENSBETREME -

FARSRELTRGAEEREME2E
Was R PrPIBR B AT B IR E AR T

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREEF T
Loss before taxation MR ATE B (7,117) (2,626)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25% R ATE 25%
(2016: 25%) (ZZT—RF : 25%):THE
TR IR (1,779) (657)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries THARAEREZEH
operating in other jurisdictions MEA RN EE RN & 93 84
Tax effect of expenses not deductible MBS E A N FE A
for tax purposes Hxse 351 arr
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RIERARBAHIAEIEN
recognised T e 1,480 163
Tax reduction B (87) -
Over-provision in previous years BEFEEERE - )
Utilisation of tax losses previously AR RIS EE
not recognised = (67)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year FRAEBRBEE (KR) 58 ©)
DIVIDENDS 15. K&
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 December TEREE-_E—+tF+-_A=+—H1
2017 (2016: Nil), nor has any dividend been proposed since the EE?H&@* EAERBRE(ZE—R
end of the reporting period. &) AMSHARNAK . TEZHEIEM
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Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
r e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

16. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING CHAIRMAN, 16. ET A (EBREFE EERES

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ <)
EMOLUMENTS)

2017 2016

—E—t&F TE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind e LENREMEDER 1,509 1,723

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRBFETEI R 60 70

1,569 1,793

Hong Kong

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for its Hong Kong employees. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees, Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group
companies (the “employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees
makes monthly contribution to the scheme a 5% of the employee’s
earning as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation.
The contributions from each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HKD1,500 per month (2016: HKD1,500 per
month), a total contribution of approximately RMB29,000 (2016:
RMB23,000) was made by the Group in respect of this scheme.

The PRC, other than Hong Kong

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Company
and those subsidiaries, which operated in the PRC, are required to
contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for all its
employees. The state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees.
Under the state-sponsored retirement plan, the Group has no
further obligations for the actual pension payments or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions, a total
contribution of approximately RMB31,000 (2016: RMB47,000) was
made by the Group in respect of this scheme.

&g

AEEZHEBEELHBBEBRFIMA
BT ERAIRE R FI I ESFTEI([5
BEFTED - BBEEFTEBRN AT HIR
KETE ABUSZAEATE - BRIERES
HE AEEREBNERARITEEDR
HEESAYIREMEENSH WA (TEE
FaFIMERTES AN EHER - BERE
EMMERUE A1,5008 (T —NF
B A1,50087T) AR - AEBERZTEIE
HEEFBELOREARKE29,000T(ZF
—NF - ARME23,0007T) ©

Bl (FBERIN)

LRAPEE G REBEE  ARRRE
PREBNZENBATERNMEEEE
o B SGR R M AT BB o BISR IR AR A
SFEAERMERKEE X MNEIRIKE -
RIBERFBRKRBHAGE - NEBERTFEH
FON - HAHHAMBERBRRS M RIGRK
BEFEL A AE - REBSZEIE
HHHRBRELOAEARES,000T(ZE
—NEF - AR®47,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
frE B ISR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

17. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 17. £F  -ESREEHS

EMOLUMENTS
Chairman, directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments IE -EEREEWHS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2016: ENSENER(ZE—RF: +t8)%
seventeen) chairman, directors and three (2016: seven) supervisors BBEN=ZZ(ZE—RF LRES
were as follows: ST
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZE—+tF+-A=+—HLFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Name Fees in kind contributions Total
¢ 28 BIRER
#e fig RENEN HE L Eoh
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T ARET T ARET T
Executive directors HTES
Mr. He Keng (Chairman) WEkE(LE) = - - -
Ms. Wu Shanhong R T - 26 - 26
Mr. Chen Weigjang REBEE - 25 - 25
Mr. Ding Cheng TREE - 25 - 25
Independent non-executive directors BIKHTES
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong REKTE 38 - - 38
Mr. Zhang Tieyi BERRAE 38 - - 38
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung, Eddie Bl 43 - - 43
Supervisors =
Mr. Shi Huanmiao REELEE = = = =
Mr. Zhang Shenggen RERLE - - - -
Mr. Chen Yuankang BLEE = = = -
Total @ 119 76 - 195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 201 7
HE_Z—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

17. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 17. =& - EEREEME — &
EMOLUMENTS — Continued

Chairman, directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments IE EBREEME — &
— Continued
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_FE—NFf+-A=1+—HILFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Name Fees inkind contributions Total
& 28 ERER
4 ik REMEHN HEES &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL

Executive directors
Mr. He Keng (Chairman)

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman)

(resigned on 13 December 2016)
Ms. Wu Shanhong

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Chen Weigiang

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Ding Cheng

(appointed on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang

(resigned on 15 September 2016)
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong

(appointed on 7 June 2016 and

resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Yu Nian Hua (resigned on 7 June 2016)

Non-executive directors
Mr. Jiang Guo Ping

(resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zheng Xin

(resigned on 13 December 2016)
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan

(resigned on 13 December 2016)

Independent non-executive directors

YrES
8EE(ZE)(R-F—NF
TZAT=REZE)
#EREE(R-F-—RF
TZAT=ARE)
RMIL L (R=F—RF
TZAT=REZE)
REBLE(R-F-—NF
TZAT=REZ)
TREE(R=F—RF
TZAT=REZHE)
TEREE(R-F-RF
NATHARE)
AERFER-F—E
AATBERERRZE—E
TZAT=RER)
RRERER-F—F
AATHEE)

FUTES
ZEFRE(RZF-—RF
TZAT=AEME)
PHAE(R-F—1RF
TZAT=AEME)
REREE(R-F—RF
TZAT=ARE)
BIFHTES

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

17. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS — Continued

17. £ - EEREEME — &

IE -EBRESEME - &

Chairman, directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

— Continued
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Name Fees in kind contributions Total
o 20 BIRER
#% e RENEHN HEE &
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFL AREFL AREFL AREFL
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin ERRAE(RZE—F
(resigned on 7 June 2016) ~AEARL) - - - -
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong REALERZT—AF
(appointed on 13 December 2016) +ZA+=REZT) - - - -
Mr. Zhang Tieyi BHREERCE—RF
(appointed on 13 December 2016) +-A+ZBEZT) - - - -
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai BERRTE(RZE—RE
(resigned on 13 December 2016) +-A+=R&) - - - -
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung, Eddie Dalirs 40 - - 40
Mr. Lu Song Qian BRFREMRZZ—F
(appointed on 7 June 2016 and NATBERARN_E—~F
resigned on 13 December 2016) TZAT=AE) - - - -
Supervisors Ex
Mrs. Mao Lihong EHZL(RZF—RF
(resigned on 7 June 2016) NATAEE) - - - -
Mr. Lu Guo Xun BESRE(WT—F
(appointed on 7 June 2016 and NACAEZARN S
resigned on 13 December 2016) +ZR+=R&) - - - -
Mr. Shi Huanmiao REERE(RZE—F
(appointed on 13 December 2016) TZAT=HEZM) - - - -
Mr. Zhang Shenggen RERGE(RZF—RF
(appointed on 13 December 2016) +ZA+=REZH) - - - -
Mr. Chen Yuankang BIRAE(RZE—RF
(appointed on 13 December 2016) +-A+ZBEZT) - - - -
Mr. Li Yuhua PEERE(R-T—RF
(resigned on 13 December 2016) +ZA+=HE) - - - -
Mrs. Shi Wei Na LEFTE(R-F—RF
(resigned on 13 December 2016) +ZA+=HE) - - - -
Total @it 40 - - 40
Note: MEE -
No directors and supervisors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the two HE-Z—+tFR-_ZT—R"F+-A=+—HILN

years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. BFETEEERESREXREZRETMME
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—

17.

18.

T LF A=t ALLFE

CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS — Continued

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the Group, none
(2016: none) was a director of the Company whose emolument are

17.

AEELEESFMALH  BE(ZF
—REFE)ARRES HMe#HIINE

included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the NHEEERT - EHRAR(ZT—RF:
remaining five (2016: five) highest paid individuals were as follows: FR)GEaHMATHBEET

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET ARBFIT

Salaries and other benefits in kind HeMEMEWER 665 798

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RREFIFTEI R 33 31

698 829

Their emoluments were within the following band:

BEZMEHNTFIATEERN

Number of employees

Nil to RMB1,000,000

No emolument have been paid by the Group to the directors and
supervisors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

No bonuses paid or receivable which are discretionary or based on
the Company’s, the group’s or any member of the group’s
performance for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB7,175,000 (2016: RMB2,624,000) divided by the weighted
average number of 500,000,000 shares (2016: 500,000,000
shares) in issue during the year.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

Tz AR%1,000,0007T

18.

EBE A
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
5 5
HE_ZT—tHFk_Z—-—X F+=A
=+ BHUIMAFE  AEETERAR

RIBEENREFN A RS FHMNA TS
SEARSIMASRIMARERR 28 -
HIEABERME -

HE-_ZT—+HF+-_A=t+—HLWEF
B BEENSEMNBIBIARERARA
Al AEBESAEEE T EARARNEKE
RIFEAT ©

BRER

BREABFRIBEARABEE ARIETF
REBHARE 7,175,000 C(ZF—XF ¢
AR¥E2,624,0007T) B AFRE BTG
B9 N F 25 3% £ 500,000,000 A% ( = Z —7<
4 : 500,000,000 f%) £+ & o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—Z—tF+_A=+—HIEFE

19.

& B A5 R P o

18. LOSS PER SHARE — Continued 18. BREIE — &
No diluted loss per share have been presented for the two years HREZ2_E—tFR-_ZFT—X F+=A
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 as there was no diluted =t BIMEFETEETAIELFER
potential ordinary share outstanding for both years. SERRPE R B AR - E b AR 2 51 5% M (R 5
EMEIRESEEE -
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. BERRKE
Computer
and office
equipment
b N
RMB’000
AREETFIT
COST 2%
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—R"F—H—H 668
Written off 6! (68)
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RF+=-A=+—H 610
Additions NE 9
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—+tHE+=-A=+—H 619
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZFFE
At 1 January 2016 R-E—XR"F—H—H 509
Provided for the year FREE 39
Eliminated on written off A 8 B £ 8 (29)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+ZA=+—H 519
Provided for the year FREE 36
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+t&+=-A=+-—H 555
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tF+=-A=+—H 64
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—AR"F+ZA=1+—H 91
Note: fsT -

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives less their residual values at the following rates per annum:

Computer and office 20%
equipment
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—

20.

21.

T—+tFF+A=+—HIEFE
INVENTORIES 20. 78
2017 2016
—E—+HF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTF T
Raw materials R AT # 647 1,294
Finished goods RIEK SR 1,137 865
1,784 2,159
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense include FHRGFERASRFEMNS - BRARN
approximately RMB647,000 (2016: Nil) in respect of write-downs of X2 GFERABFEHARE 647,000 (=
inventory to net realisable value. T—RE |
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. EWESERRREREE
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTFT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 IRR 15,288 6,150
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B BEHREEE (343) (445)
Trade receivables, net of impairment FEUE S8 - MkREE 14,945 5,705
Bills receivable R ERE 5,933 -
20,878 5,705
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to its trade REFBLTHE SR EEHEZEH A0
customers. =

Impairment loss on trade receivables is recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade receivables directly.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s trade receivables
were individually determined to impair. The individually impaired
receivables are recognised based on the credit history of its
customers, such as financial difficulties or default in payments, and
current market conditions. Consequently, specific provision for
impairment was recognised.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

e SR R BRI A e AR RO E
RS EEEFED WS ETAERINE
HERT  BEBEERNERE SRR
HH)

REMEHR - ANEE 2 @R EKE SR
%&ﬁﬁu REBARIE o 5 2R E -
ROVEREREFP ZEERE - W R
%ﬁ&#ﬁ(ﬁ TUA R IRB WIS AR T T LAE
Ao Bt - BRI E R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—
21.

T rEt-A=t—ALAE
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES — Continued

21.

BREZERARERRE — &

The aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the NTREZEEZA2I|NEKEZE SRR (EN
invoice date, net of impairment losses recognised was as follows: B EERABERE) NIRRT

2017 2016

:§_‘t$ —F— /\i

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AEEFT

0-90 days 0&Z90H 8,029 3,344

91-180 days 912180H 1,900 34

181-365 days 181 £ 365 H 5,015 1,833

Over 365 days 365 H A = 1 494

14,945 5,705

The movements in impairment losses of trade receivables were as
follows:

FEWE SRR H B ERIBNEE T

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET AREFT

At 1 January w—H—H 445 42
Recognise during the year FRER - 445
Reversal of previously impaired B R ERE (103) -
Written off during the year FAHMH = 42
Exchange realignment ER AR 1 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 343 445
At 31 December 2017, included in the impairment loss are RZEB—tF+ZA=+—08 " FEEE

individually impaired trade receivables in the Group with an
aggregate balance of approximately RMB343,000 (2016:
RMB445,000) which are long outstanding and have been placed in
severe financial difficulties and the management assessed that the
recovery of the amounts is doubtful. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fra R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES — Continued

The aging analysis of trade receivables which were past due but
not impaired are as follows:

BREZERARERRE — &

EEEERAENERE ZEROERR S
W :

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Within 90 days past due #HI0 A
91 to 180 days past due wWEO1 =180 H
Over 180 days past due #HEI180 H A £

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

1,900 34
5,015 1,833

1 494
6,916 2,361

AR AR BB B FE UL 5 BR K BT A R
RN ZEP AR

2B RBEN RS 5 M7 7% R
AEERARFFELENBLIEFP AR
RBBERSR EEER/RTEHRNE
EERVESANE  BNEEA/TEH
Ym - B AEREARERE - A%E
W L% SRR A TR m o

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22, ENRE  RERHEMEWERR
RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREEF T
Prepayments FETSRIE 173 1
Deposits e 21 34
Other receivables HoAth pE UL R 3K 641 650
Amount due from a related company (Note) — FEUZ—ZK B8 A =708 (fiHEr) 400 -
1,235 685
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B BETREEE (639) (639)
596 46
Note: The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment. MicE : ZACAREER RS AEEEERY -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—
22,

23.

24,

T rEt-A=t—ALAE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES — Continued

The movements in impairment losses of prepayments, deposits
and other receivables were as follows:

22,

ANRE RERHEMERERER
- &
BNRA - e KA R AR R E

BHEFINT

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBFIT

At 1 January S—H—H 639 639
Recognise during the year FNTER - -
At 31 December w+—_A=+—H 639 639
At 31 December 2017, included in the impairment loss are R-E—+F+-A=+—H REHE

individually impaired prepayments, deposits and other receivables
is the Group with an aggregate balance of approximately
RMB639,000 (2016: RMB639,000) which are have been placed in
severe financial difficulties and the management assessed that the
recovery of the amounts as doubtful. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2016 represented cash
at bank held by a subsidiary pledged for issuance of a bank
guarantee of USD14,500. The pledged bank deposits carried fixed
interest rate of 0.01% per annum and were released during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from 0.01% to
0.35% (2016: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

At 31 December 2017 approximately RMB5,108,000 was
denominated in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC (2016:
RMB2,760,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through authorised banks to conduct
foreign exchange business.
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B e REMERER - BEENES
BB R R - AREY ERL R FE R
BEE#EAR -

EEFRITEK

RZZE—RNF+A=+—H B KR
TEFIETL 31T 14,500 2T R RITHER T
RO —EHBRRMEARRITES -
A IRIR 1T E 2% 0.01 E R B E F F K51
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RITERREE
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RTISF R B o
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5,108,000 TL A AR EHE « W7 A EIHY
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

25.

26.

TRADE PAYABLES

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

25. ENESKRM

BEERMTHEERRORB -

RHRERARIZERAZINENE F KRR

MR DTSR T

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
0-90 days 0Z90H 8,212 503
91-180 days 912180 H 823 920
181-365 days 181 %365 H 4,626 561
Over 365 days BB 365 H 1,138 2,383
14,799 4,367

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HiESBRRRESTER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT
Other payables E A ETERER 6,918 1,249
Accruals EEtE A 560 1,136
Provision for claim (Note 34) RIERE (MI7E34) 86 86
7,564 2,471

Included in other payables and accruals are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the

Hib AR R E &R R THIFE A
B AN BRI ER AN E R

entity to which they relate: B) :
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
HKD BT - 936
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For the year ended 31 December 201 7
HE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

27. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR/FORMER
DIRECTOR

27. BEN—REE RHEERE

2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Amount due to a director B —REEHIE
Mr. He Keng AT 5T A

Amount due to a former director Bt — R AT E B RTE
Mr. Zhu Guo An HER LA

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed term of repayment.

28. AMOUNT DUE TO A MAJOR SHAREHOLDER/
FORMER SHAREHOLDER

539 -

1,775 11,206

ZHRAREER R REBEEERY

28. BN—BRFXTERR FIRRAE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Due to a major shareholder e —4 Iyﬂx%*
Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent WTIm R A agt&
Robot Co., Ltd. BHERA 275 2,000
Due to a former shareholder e — R AR R R TE
Wanli Holding Group Co., Ltd. SEEREEROBRAR - 31,191

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed term of repayment.

29. DIVIDENDS PAYABLES

The dividends payables represent the final dividend declared for
Promoter Shares in 2004 and shareholders of the Company in
2005 which amounting to RMB940,000 and RMB3,500,000
respectively.
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30.

31.

OTHER BORROWINGS

Hig &
2017 2016
—S—+t& —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

et AR®TR ARBTT

Zhu Ji Ke Ying Metal Materials Limited* RERREBVEIERAA

Yuyao Wanli Mortgage Company Limited* k& B HE R A A

(i) The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment.

(i) The loan was obtained from Yuyao Wanli Mortgage Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the former shareholder, Wanli Holding Group Company Limited
and the amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment.

The loan was settled during the year ended 31 December 2017.

* For identification purpose only
LOAN FROM A MAJOR SHAREHOLDER

As at 31 December 2017, the balance is unsecured, interest free
and not repayable within three years from the date of grant of the
loan. As the major shareholder has confirmed that it would not
demand for loan repayment from the Company for at least 12
months from the financial statements approval date, the loan from
the major shareholder is classified as non-current liabilities.

On the date of grant, the Group credited an amount of
RMB9,483,000 to other reserve which represented the difference
between the fair value of the loan from a major shareholder and the
amount received.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

31.
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/B °

o @A
RE-—BXTERRZER

RZZE—+tF+ZA=+—H HBEARE
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FREEZE ARTEREEER BB
mEAEBHRFEL 12N EFg
ERARNFEEER  BORAZEERRE
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. B
Number of
shares Amount
BRAEHE &5
000 RMB’000
T ARBFIT
Authorised, issued and fully paid: EE C BETRER
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RE—-H—H"

and 31 December 2017 —E-XRE+ZA=+—-HBK
—E—+tHE+=-A=+-—H 500,000 50,000
Domestic shares (Note a) NE R (H5Ta) 370,000 37,000
H shares (Note b) H % (FY3EDb) 130,000 13,000
500,000 50,000

Notes:

(a) Pursuant to an approval dated 4 June 20083 issued by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission, all the shares of the Company, which were issued and
fully paid, being 37,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each,
were sub-divided into 370,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
RMBO0.10 each.

(b) On 14 November 20083, the Company commenced the trading of the newly
issued 130,000,000 H shares of RMB0.10 each on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, including 117,000,000 H shares to institutional investors by way of
placement and 13,000,000 H shares for subscription by members of the public
in Hong Kong under the Public Offer at the Offer Price of HKDO0.50 (equivalent
to approximately RMB69,550,000). Following the issue, the share capital and
capital reserve of the Company increased by approximately HKD12,150,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB13,000,000) and HKD52,850,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB56,550,000) respectively.
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION

34.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately RMB13,275,000 (2016: RMB4,881,000)
available to offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
unused tax losses incurred by the Company and PRC subsidiaries
can be carried forward for a period of five years. Other tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(i

(ii)

LBTC 3663/2016 (the “Labour Tribunal
Proceedings”)

On or around 7 November 2016, a former employee (the
“Former Employee”) was terminated by the Company on or
around 5 October 2016 (the “Termination Date”), commenced
proceedings in the Labour Tribunal against the Company and
its subsidiary, Hong Kong Wan Li Enterprise Co. Ltd. (“HK
Wan Li") (together, the “Respondents”), claiming a total
amount of approximately of HK$2,600,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB2,340,000) on a number of grounds,
including (i) dismissal by reason of redundancy, (i) failure to
grant statutory holidays, (i) failure to grant annual leave, (iv)
failure to pay long service payment, (v) failure to make
payment for overtime work, (vi) failure to pay end of year
payment, (vi) failure to pay bonus. Pursuant to the Order of
the Labour Tribunal dated 5 May 2017, the Labour Tribunal
Proceedings are presently stayed indefinitely with costs
reserved.

As of the date hereof, the Company is not aware of any
further development to the Labour Tribunal Proceedings
since 5 May 2017.

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
Case No. C17080247 (the “MPF Case”)

The Former Employee filed a complaint with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority (“MPFSA”) alleging that
the Company (i) did not arrange for him to be a member of a
registered Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme, and (ii)
did not make MPF contributions for him. After investigation,
the MPFSA issued a letter dated 28 December 2017
requesting HK Wan Li to make a payment for the unpaid MPF
contribution and surcharges in the total amount of
approximately of HK$3,000, which was paid in early January
2018.

As of the date hereof, the Company is not aware of whether
the MPFSA intends to, or will, take further steps against the
Company and/or HK Wan Li in the MPF case.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

33. EEHIA

RIFEBR AEEBEARGHABEBELY
AR®13,275,000 L (ZF—RF + AR
4,881,0007T) + Al RSB R 2 7 o A
A R B S ) SR 89 S B FEBIME - Bt S 4
BREMECHREBEE - BREPRHEEE
BRFER - ARE R BB AR E LD
FEBRIBEEAERLTHNES - Hih
FRIBE B ] PR Hp A 6 -

HREE

34.

i)
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES — Continued

(iii)

(iv)

KTS17027/2017 — Summons Hearing against the
Company in relation to Section 40(1) of the
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance

The Company was prosecuted by the Labour Department
under a Summons dated 13 September 2017 for employing
one employee on 4 October 2016 without there being in force
in relation to such employee a policy of insurance issued by
an insurer for an amount not less than the applicable amount
under the Employee Compensation Ordinance (“ECO”) in
respect of the liability of the employer. The Company pleaded
guilty and was convicted at a hearing in the Kwun Tong
Magistrates’ Courts on 12 October 2017 for contravening
section 40(1) of the ECO and was ordered to pay a fine in the
amount of HK$2,500, which has been paid by the Company.

The Company also had to pay a surcharge (the “Surcharge”)
to the Employees Compensation Assistance Fund Board (the
“ECAF Board”) in respect of the above conviction under
Section 36A of the Employees Compensation Assistance
Ordinance. The Company has provided information to the
ECAF Board and is currently waiting for it to assess the
Surcharge. As of the date hereof, the Company is not aware
of any reply or decision from the ECAF Board in respect of
payment of the Surcharge.

KTS31/2018 — Summons Hearing against the
Company in relation to Sections 11F(3), 63(1) and
63(7) of the Employment Ordinance

During 2017, the Labour Department made enquiries and
requested information from the Company in relation to a
complaint made by the Former Employee in relation to
payment of end of year payment in respect of the period
between 1 January 2016 to 5 October 2016.

Subsequently, the Company was prosecuted by the Labour
Department under a Summons dated 3 January 2018 for
wilfully and without reasonable excuse failing to pay the
Former Employee within seven days from the Termination
Date the proportion of the end of year payment in respect of
the period between 1 January 2016 and 5 October 2016.
The Company pleaded guilty and was convicted on 1
February 2018 for contravening Sections 11F(3), 63(1) and
63(7) of the Employment Ordinance and was ordered to pay
a fine in the amount of HK$6,000, which has been paid by
the Company.
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34.

35.

T LF A=t ALLFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES — Continued 34. FAREE— &
Taking into account the possible outcome and their obligations for KEREMEGOAGEERRET  #E
the above cases, the Group has made a provision for claim of ZE-RFF+ZRA=FT—HLEFE K&
approximately RMB86,000 (equivalent to approximately B B 1E D RE R #E O AR 86,0007t (18
HK$96,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016. There was no ERNA96,0008T) c REBEIZ_ZT—tF
further provision for the year ended 31 December 2017. TZA=+—ALEFEWEE SR -
Since the above cases are still in progress, the Directors would ARZ b EHNEETER £
continue to exercise their due care in monitoring the progress of BREERZREZER  UHENEER
the cases and would assess the adequacy of provision of claim and BAFZERGZBEBRORAREARE
the financial impact to the Group as and when appropriate. The ZHBRE BEERRR_T—tF+=
Directors believe that the amount of approximately RMB86,000 at A=+—B#HARS86,000T2 AR
31 December 2017 represents the best estimate of the Group’s SERWEEERBELNSEAGBG -
liability having taken legal advice.
Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent MEXFiEEE AEBBMESASARE
liabilities. i
OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENT 35. REHLNEE
The Group as lessee AEBEREEA
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group KEHERBEASEREETHAE
for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for a term ¥EMNHES - HAONBERAN T —=
ranging from one to three years. None of the leases included = o WENABERNBL REBFH
contingent rentals and terms of renewal were established in the RISRATEAY A o
leases.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RImEBR - REBRENAT B EEE
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating B AR AS = A 4B B 18 R S 508
leases which fall due as follows: VEH A
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Within one year —F W 6 36
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRFT (BEEEMT) = -
6 36
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36.

37.

38.

126

T rEt-A=t—ALAE

CAPITAL COMMITMENT 36. EAREIE
2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT
Capital contribution to subsidiaries MM EARETEARTE 6,000 -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37.

CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

L _\éiﬁﬁﬁiim?

METHEENEEZEE

The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising

from financing activities during the year:

At 1 January 2016

Changes in cash flows

Foreign exchange
translations

At 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017

Changes in cash flows

Non-cash changes

Foreign exchange
translations

At 31 December 2017

TE/RAEERFARELHELNAR

Z “=4 @J .
Amount Amount Amount
Amount due to due to due to Loanfrom  Total liabilities
Other due to a former amajor a former amajor from financing
borrowings a director director  shareholder  shareholder  shareholder activities
Ef-4% Ef-4% Ef-% RE-%
Ef-% HEEE IZRR HERE IZRR HEEE
BN EEE HA Ev] HAE ZE5 BEER
RVB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000
ARETT  ARETR  AREBTR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
RZEF-E-f-A 11,000 1,073 - 29,658 - - 51,731
RenEEy (4,780) (11,079) 11,073 (27,658) 31,191 - (1,247)
MEER
- - 133 - - - 133
RZE-1F
+:ﬂ£+—a&

T—t+5-A-H 6,220 - 1,206 2,000 31,191 - 50,617
fﬁﬁ hER (4,700) 51 (9622) 6,275 (31,191) 46,000 7213
#f%mgx@] - - - (8,000) - (753) (15,536)
SNEER

- 28 191 - - - 219
RZE-tF
T-R=1-H 1,520 539 1,775 275 - 38464 42,578

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@ The balances with related parties at the end of reporting
period are disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial RE
statements.

(b)  The key management personnel of the Group comprises all (b)
Directors and Supervisors, details of their emoluments are
disclosed in Note 17. The remuneration of the Directors is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to

the performance of individuals and market.
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

39. ARQTFMMBARREK

COMPANY
2017 2016
—ZE—tF ZE-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
btat AR¥T ARBTT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB A RIMRE (a) - 5,621
- 5,621
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A I EENGIE e (b) 2,423 3,166
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRHIE - 'EeE R
receivables Hoh fEURERIR 569 -
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIRS 5,016 2,510
8,008 5,676
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals EEMERER R ERTEA 701 1,255
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETFT B A 7TAIE (b) 243 256
Amount due to a former director Bt —ZRIEER - 9,288
Amount due to a major shareholder &t —%& = Eﬂxﬁm 151 2,000
Amount due to a former shareholder & {t — %4 Al % 8 5k IH - 31,191
Dividends payable FEHRR B 4,440 4,440
Other borrowings HiEE 1,520 6,220
7,055 54,650
Net current assets (liabilities) REEE(BE)FHE 953 (48,974)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Loan from a major shareholder KE—BFERBZEXK 38,464 -
Net liabilities FEE (37,511) (43,353)
Capital and reserves B
Share capital R AR 50,000 50,000
Reserves 1 (© (87,511) (93,353)
Capital deficiency B E 4 (37,511) (43,353)

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2018

and are signed on its behalf by:

He Keng
(O
Director

EF

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO

ARBHPBERARDIEEEFGN_F
“NEFEZA-FT=RHERKETE A
HTIEEAREE

Wu shanhong
R AT

Director

EE

e pAm: p:d
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. AATWEHEMRRK — &
COMPANY — Continued

Notes gz
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (@) R B R BRIEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETFT
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETIIRE « R 3,181 6,361
Less: Accumulated impairment B BEHRE (3,181) (740)
- 5,621
(o) Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries (o) FEUL (1) B B8 2 B 308
2017 2016
—E—+tF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETT
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A RIFRIA 2,423 3,166
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A R (243) (256)
(©) Reserves () f#fE
Statutory
Capital Other surplus Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ERfGE HivfE ZERHLAES R EE Foh
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARBT ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2016 R-E—AE—A—H 40,449 241,510 23,701 (397,463) (91,803)
Loss and total comprehensive FREBLREEBALE

income for the year - - - (1,550) (1,550)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—-R"F+=-A=+—H 40,449 241,510 23,701 (399,013) (93,353)
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZERARE

income for the year - - - (11,641) (11,641)
Arising from loan from a major RE—EBEERRZER

shareholder - 9,483 - - 9,483
Waiver of amount due to a major RN —ZTERR 2 FE

shareholder - 8,000 - - 8,000

At 31 December 2017 W-Z—+F+-A=1—H 40,449 258,993 23,701 (410,654) (87,511)

z
|1
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

40. FEWBE QT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZE—tFRZIE—ARF+ZA=+—
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows: B AAREEMBARFEAOT :
Place of
incorporation/
registration Attributable equity
Class of and operation/  Paid up/ interest held
Name of subsidiary shares held establishment issued share capital by the Company Principal activities
Rl e
ifkeE/ S8R/
WEARER FEROEN  RIBH BRTRE RRFEERE TEEH
2017 2016
= S A
Hong Kong Wan Li Ordinary Hong Kong HKD10,000 100% 100% Trading the electronic component
Enterprise Company Limited (paid up HKD1,000) and electronic subassembly
BEERLRARAA LRR & 10000757 100% 100% EETFTHRETFHE
(412 1,000/%7)
Shenzhen Shi WanHao Wu Contributed capital  PRC RMB3,180,000 100% 100% Trading the electronic component and
Lian Technology Limited original equipment manufacturing
electronic subassembly
MIMESYENEERLT  BEARA 4: ARE 3,180,007 100% 100% EESFrARREZERES
il
Hangzhou Jingin Trading Contributed capital  PRC* - 100% - Trading the industrial electronic intelligent
Co. Ltd. control equipment and electronic
automation digital control system
M ESERAR BARA mE - 100% - BETSSTEREHRER
ETERUTRNZS
Hangzhou Qinyu Electronic Contributed capital  PRC* - 100% - Trading the industrial electronic intelligent
Technology Co. Ltd. control equipment and electronic
automation digital control system
RLEEFRRERAT  E&RA hE* - 100% - BETSSTEREHRER
ETERRUTENZS
# Up to the reporting date, no registered share capital have been paid up and the ¢ HEERSAH  HECHREMRARA2FR

Company therefore and an outstanding investment commitment of

approximately RMB6,000,000 in the subsidiaries as set out in Note 35.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY CO
Do pARp e

T #EA ANBH 35 35 BT 51 2 FAM B A Rl R (E 38
& FYER AR 6,000,000 7T ©

RERLFEREAER - BEMEQRE
EfEAEENEBES
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41. DEREGISTRATION OF A SUBSIDIARY 41.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
deregistered Yuyao City Wanhao Technology Industrial Company

—BE B2 REMEER

RBE-_T—tF+-_A=1T—"BLHK
FE AEBHHEEC - METELES

Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC which was inactive. R ENBERRRITEZRIREE
BRAF]

RMB’000

AEEFTT

Trade receivables FEW & 5 kI8 34

Net assets of deregistered subsidiary BIEERMNBARNEETE 34

Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary —HfEARBHEERNER 34

The subsidiary deregistered during the year ended 31 December
2017 had no significant impact on the turnover and results of the
Group.

42. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42,

There are no significant events after the reporting period.

130 ANNUAL REPORT 2017
“E—FFR

WEE-F—tET-A=+-ALFE
e EtRE P E R R Lo E L RS
B MBEATE -

BERREHE

REBRR - WEELERMEREER -



Summary of Financial Information

B 5 B R 2

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_HA=+—HILFE

RESULTS £
For the year ended 31 December
HEt-A=t-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“2—+tf -Z-RF —EZ-1FfF Z—E-QMF <C—E-Z=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARETT AREFTE ARETR
Revenue Wiz 44,529 14,337 56,427 43,787 47,039
Cost of sales HEMAK (43,905) (12,648) (54,477) (41,144) (48,307)
Gross profit (loss) E708 (B#8) 624 1,689 1,950 2,643 (1,268)
Other income HinA 14 5 512 830 (1,649)
Reversal of trade payables RO E SRR - - 850 - 88,473
Waiver of other payables and accruals A% E i BN BR 20 - [EHE A
and receipt in advances RIEWGERIE - - 5,938 158 3,510
Selling and distribution expenses HENDIHER - - - @) (464)
Written off of trade and Wss PR E B RF R H e
other receivables R (503) - - - (2,842)
Written off of paid in advance WHEAENFE (156) - - - -
Reversal of impairment loss on [EWE SERFUREEERD
trade receivables 103 - - - -
Administrative expenses THER (5,217) (6,663) (5,353) (10,370) (11,318)
Finance costs BEMKA (1,948) - - (750) 912)
Gain on disposal of investment HEREMERER
properties and prepaid BEM T
lease payments - 2,343 - - -
(Loss) gain on deregistration/disposal B &,/ HEH B AT
of subsidiaries (B8 (34) - 627 (129) -
(Loss) profit before taxation BRiAT (E518) %A (7,117) (2,626) 4,524 (7,623 73,530
Income tax (expense) credit SR (A EE (58) 2 - (21) -
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) R (7,175) (2,624) 4,524 (7,644) 73,530
Attributable to: JE(f -
Owners of the Company AREHEBA (7,175) (2,624) 4,524 (7,147) 72,255
Non-controlling interests SRR - - - (497) 1,275
(Loss) profit for the year FR(BE) R (7,175) (2,624) 4,524 (7,644) 73,530
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Summary of Financial Information
IS E R E

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE 8ENRER

At 31 December

R+t=A=+-AH
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E2—t& -"T-Rf& TR C—T-NMFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT AREFT AR®Tn ARETR

Total assets BELT 28,968 15,388 16,079 18,696 24,588
Total liabilities BERE (69,623) (66,466) (64,457) (70,944) (69,210)
(40,655) (51,078) (48,378) (52,248) (44,622)
Equity attributable to owners AREEBA
of the Company bR (40,655) (51,078) (48,378) (52,881) (45,753
Non-controlling interests iR - - - 633 1,131
(40,655) (51,078) (48,378) (52,248) (44,622)
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